

# Guide to the Ted Allan Rathbun papers, 1961-2004

Ann R. Hunt

June 2008

National Anthropological Archives Museum Support Center 4210 Silver Hill Road Suitland, Maryland 20746 naa@si.edu http://www.anthropology.si.edu/naa/

# Table of Contents

Collection Overview 1	
Administrative Information 1	
Scope and Contents	\$
Arrangement 4	ŀ
Biographical / Historical	2
Selected Bibliography 4	ŀ
Names and Subjects 4	ŀ
Container Listing	;
Series 1: Correspondence, 1969-2004 5	;
Series 2: Field Work, 1976-1996, 2001 14	ŀ
Series 3: Consulting Work, 1973-2012 24	ŀ
Series 4: Research Data, 1977-1980 72	)
Series 5: Publications, 1963-2001 74	ŀ
Series 6: Grants, 1977-1991 83	\$
Series 7: Professional Organizations, 1981-2011	;
Series 8: Grants and Publications Reviews, 1974-2000	
Series 9: University of South Carolina, 1970-2004, undated 105	;
Series 10: Education, 1961–1970 124	ŀ
Series 11: Slides, 1964-1990, undated 126	;
Series 12: Electronic Records, 1996, undated 127	,

# **Collection Overview**

Repository:	National Anthropological Archives
Title:	Ted Allan Rathbun Papers
Date:	1961-2004
Identifier:	NAA.2005-08
Creator:	Rathbun, Ted A., 1942-
Extent:	26 Linear feet (53 document boxes, 4 record storage boxes, 1 oversize box, 1 folder, 3 computer disks)
Language:	English .
Summary:	This collection is comprised of the professional papers of Ted Allan Rathbun. The collection documents his career as a forensic anthropologist and educator through correspondence, publications and teaching materials. The collection includes the publications resulting from his research in South Carolina, Egypt, and Glorieta, New Mexico, as well as a small portion of his research data. His other writings that can be found in the collection include his monographs, journal articles, papers presented at conferences, and reviews he wrote for various journals and publications. The collection also includes materials relating to his consulting activities for law enforcement agencies, and military and historical organizations. Additionally, the collection contains materials related to organizations that he was a member of and his syllabi and lecture notes as a professor at the University of South Carolina. The collection also includes Rathbun's course notes when, as a student at the University of Kansas, he studied under William Bass, Ellis Kerley and other notable anthropologists. Among his correspondents were J. Lawrence Angel, Eve Cockburn, Henry Dobyns, Henry Field, T. Dale Stewart, and T. Cuyler Young.

# Administrative Information

### Acquisition Information

Dr. Rathbun donated his professional papers to the National Anthropological Archives in 2005. Additional files were donated in 2013 by his wife, Babette Rathbun, after his death.

### Separated Materials

Biological specimens found within Series 3. Consulting Work, Subseries: Forensic Cases were transferred to Physical Anthropology Collections, National Museum of Natural History. Videos, also from the forensic case files, were transferred to the Human Studies Film Archives.

### **Related Materials**

Rathbun's South Carolina research materials are at the South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology. His other field research data can be found at the Field Museum in Chicago and the Penn Museum in Philadelphia.

His body was donated to the Forensic Anthropology Center at the University of Tennessee and the Physical Anthropology Collections, National Museum of Natural History.

### Processing Information

The papers of Ted Allan Rathbun were received well organized and documented. The processing archivist kept most of the existing groupings and arrangement and organized the first deposit into ten series. Folder titles assigned by the archivist are placed within square brackets.

Files received in 2013 were prepared for deposit by Rathbun's colleague Michael Trinkley. Trinkley maintained Rathbun's original organization and folder titles and rehoused the files in archival folders and archival slide sleeves. He photocopied acidic notes on archival paper and transferred Rathbun's electronic files from a variety of CDs and 3.50" floppy disks onto a DVD-R. This accretion was physically added to the end of the collection, but intellectually integrated within the container list. Two series were added to accommodate Rathbun's collection of slides and electronic files.

### **Preferred Citation**

Ted Allan Rathbun papers, National Anthropological Archives, Smithsonian Institution

#### Restrictions

Rathbun's forensic case files donated in 2013 are restricted until 2088. Two folders containing student grades have been separated and are restricted until 2055. For preservation reasons, his computer disks have been separated and restricted. Please note that the collection contains images of human remains.

### Conditions Governing Use

Contact the repository for terms of use

# **Biographical / Historical**

Ted Allan Rathbun (1942-2012) earned his B.A. (1964), M.A. (1966), and Ph.D. (1971) in anthropology from the University of Kansas, where he studied under anthropologist William M. Bass. He taught English as a Peace Corps Volunteer in Iran, where he became fluent in Farsi and did research for his doctorate. He conducted research on topics as wide-ranging as population growth in Iran; the physical characteristics of Woodland Indians; Coastal South Carolina paleopathology; growth rates among ancient urban states; shark attacks and human remains; social class and health; the history of African American health; and predynastic cemeteries at Hierakonpolis, Upper Egypt. Through his South Carolina field work and publications, Rathbun became noted for expanding the knowledge of Afro-American history from the colonial and Civil War times.

Rathbun was also a pioneer in establishing and expanding the use of forensic anthropology technology by law enforcement. He was licensed in South Carolina to assist coroners, law enforcement officials and medical examiners in identifying human remains. He and his students refined a process for the reconstruction of victim's faces, which were then used to assist in their identification. He served as a consulting physical anthropologist to the Charleston County Medical Examiner (1973-93); Deputy State Archaeologist for Forensics (1985-2000); and Consultant to the U.S. Military Central Identification Laboratory in Hawaii (1990-2003/2004) where he reviewed cases of military (and civilian) remains from the Vietnam, Korea, and WWII eras. He also participated in the Disaster Mortuary Operational Response Team (DMORT) efforts for identification of the victims of September 11, 2001.

Rathbun taught at the University of South Carolina for 30 years. He was a popular classroom professor and led research field trips with his students. In 1996 he received the Louise Fry Scudder Faculty Award, which recognized him for excellence in undergraduate and graduate teaching, student mentoring and advising, and service contributions beyond the university. He retired from full-time teaching in 2000.

Rathbun was also a research associate of the South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology; director of the American Board of Forensic Anthropology (1985-91); and for 15 years a member of the editorial board of the Journal of Forensic Sciences. In 2005, he was honored by the American Academy of Forensic Sciences with the T. Dale Stewart Award — its highest honor in Forensic Anthropology — for his lifetime achievements and contributions to the field.

1942	Born April 11
1964	Married
1964	Earns B.A. from University of Kansas, Honors in Anthropology
1966	Earns M.A. from University of Kansas, Physical Anthropology
1966-1968	Peace Corps Volunteer in Iran
1970	Instructor at the University of South Carolina
1971	Earns PhD. from University of Kansas, (Physical Anthropology of SWAsia, Applied Cultural and Cultural Ecology). Dissertation: <i>An Analysis of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Hasanlu, Iran</i>
1971-1975	Assistant Professor at the University of South Carolina
1975-1984	Associate Professor at the University of South Carolina
1984-2000	Professor at the University of South Carolina
1987-1989	Chairman of the Anthropology Department
1990-1996	Undergraduate Director
1996	Awarded Louise Fry Scudder professorship
1999	Named Distinguished Professor
2000	Named Distinguished Professor Emeritus
2005	Honored by the American Academy of Forensic Sciences with the T. Dale Stewart Award
2012	Passed away on November 14

# Scope and Contents

This collection is comprised of the professional papers of Ted Allan Rathbun,. The collection documents his career as a forensic anthropologist and educator through correspondence, publications and teaching materials. The collection includes the publications resulting from his research in South Carolina, Egypt, and Glorieta, New Mexico, as well as a small portion of his research data. His other writings that can be found in the collection include his monographs, journal articles, papers presented at conferences, and reviews he wrote for various journals and publications. The collection also includes materials relating to his consulting activities for law enforcement agencies, and military and historical organizations. Additionally, the collection contains materials related to organizations that he was a member of and his syllabi and lecture notes as a professor at the University of South Carolina. The collection also includes Rathbun's course notes when, as a student at the University of Kansas, he studied under William Bass, Ellis Kerley and other notable anthropologists. Among his correspondents were J. Lawrence Angel, Eve Cockburn, Henry Dobyns, Henry Field, T. Dale Stewart, and T. Cuyler Young.

Please note that the contents of the collection and the language and terminology used reflect the context and culture of the time of its creation. As an historical document, its contents may be at odds with contemporary views and terminology and considered offensive today. The information within this collection does not reflect

the views of the Smithsonian Institution or National Anthropological Archives, but is available in its original form to facilitate research.

# Arrangement

Arranged into 10 series: 1) Correspondence (1969-2004); 2) Field Work (1976-1996, 2001); 3) Consulting Work (1974-2004); 4) Research Data (1977-1980); 5) Publications (1963-2001); 6) Grants (1977-1991); 7) Professional Organizations (1981-2000); 8) Grants and Publications Reviews (1974-2000); 9) University of South Carolina (1970-2004); 10) Education (1961-1970)

### Selected Bibliography

1972 An Analysis of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Hasanlu, Iran. Coconut Grove, Miami, Florida: Field Research Projects.

1975 *A Study of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Kish, Iraq.* Coconut Grove, Miami, Florida: Field Research Projects.

1982 (with Mark J. Brooks, Larry Lepionka and John Goldsborough, Jr.) *Preliminary Archaeological Investigations at the Callawassie Burial Mound (38BU19), Beaufort County, South Carolina.* Columbia., S.C.: Research Manuscript Series 185. S.C. Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology, University of South Carolina

1984 (co-editor with Jane Buikstra). *Human Identification: Case Studies in Forensic Anthropology.* Springfield, Illinois: Charles C. Thomas, Publisher.

### Names and Subject Terms

This collection is indexed in the online catalog of the Smithsonian Institution under the following terms:

Subjects:

Biological anthropology Forensic anthropology

#### Names:

U.S. Army Central Identification Laboratory University of Kansas. Department of Anthropology University of South Carolina. Department of Anthropology

#### Places:

Glorieta National Battlefield (N.M.) Hierakonpolis (Extinct city) South Carolina

# **Container Listing**

# Series 1: Correspondence, 1969-2004

#### 1.7 Linear feet

Scope and This series contains professional correspondence with local, national and international colleagues, and with professional organizations regarding membership. Noteworthy among Rathbun's correspondents are J. Lawrence Angel, Eve Cockburn, Henry Dobyns, Henry Field, T. Dale Stewart, and T. Cuyler Young.

More of Rathbun's correspondence can be found elsewhere in the collection. Correspondence relating to his book, Human Identification: Case Studies in Forensic Anthropology, which he co-edited with Jane Buikstra, is found in Series 5. Publications. Correspondence from USC officials, colleagues, and students can be found in Series 9. University of South Carolina.

Box 1	Adams, Robert McC., 1976
Box 1	Adcock, James. 1992
Box 1	Adkins, T. R., 1989
Box 1	Alexander, A. Elizabeth. 1991
Box 1	American Academy of Forensic Sciences, 1978-2002
Box 1	American Academy of Forensic Sciences Journal of Forensic Sciences, 1989-2001
Box 1	American Anthropological Association (AAA). 1979(?), 1994, 1998
Box 1	American Association of Physical Anthropologists (AAPA). 2001
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology. Annual Reports. 1989-2001
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1983-1987
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1987-1988
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1988-1989
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1990-2003
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1990
Box 1	American Board of Forensic Anthropology, 1991, Financial Statements
Box 1	Andersen, B.C., 1983

Box 1	Angel, J. Lawrence. 1979-1985, 1986
Box 1	Anthony, Ronald W., 1982
Box 1	Archaeological Institute of America, 1979-1983
Box 1	Artamel, Janice. 1992
Box 1	Aufderheide, Arthur C., 1981-1984
Box 1	Ballinger, David. 1977
Box 1	Barron, Frank (Coroner). 1979, 1988
Box 1	Barron, Frank. 1992
Box 1	Bass, William M., 1970-1993
Box 1	Becker, Marshall. 1975-1982
Box 1	Benfer, Bob and Louanna. 1998
Box 1	Biographical Publications (e.g., "Who's Who"
Box 1	Birkby, Walter. 1980-1982
Box 1	Blakley, Robert. 1990
Box 1	Breuggeman, Judith. 1974-1977
Box 1	Brissie, Robert. 1975, 1979
Box 1	Brooks, Mark. 1982
Box 1	Brooks, Sheilagh. 1979-1987
Box 1	Brownfain, John. 1984
Box 1	Büchi, E. C. and Achilles, Susanne. 1975
Box 1	Buikstra, Jane. 1980
Box 1	Caldwell, Peggy C., 1982-1986
Box 1	Campbell, Homer R., 1980
Box 1	Cappieri, Mario. 1975

Box 1	Caspari, Rachel. 1977-1978
Box 1	Charney, Mike. 1977-1980
Box 1	Chicora Foundation, 1983-1987
Box 2	Chicora Foundation, 1991-1992
Box 2	Cockburn, Eve. 1976-1979
Box 2	Cole, Glen. 1972-1980
Box 2	Cook, Della. 1997
Box 2	Cooper, Doreen. 1987
Box 2	Coppa, Alfredo. 1975-1977
Box 2	Crist, Thomas A. J., 1990-1991
Box 2	Cybulski, Jerome. 1978-1979, 1989
Box 2	DeFreese, Dan. 1990
Box 2	Dirkmaat, Dennis C., 1989
Box 2	Dixon, Anna R., 1980
Box 2	Dobyns, Henry. 1979-1980
Box 2	Drucker, Lesley M., 1977
Box 2	Dyson, Robert H., 1976-1982
Box 2	Eakins, J. Ken. 1980
Box 2	Eisenberg, Leslie E., 1991-1992
Box 2	Elkins, Aaron. 1988-1994
Box 2	Field, Henry. 1972-1986
Box 2	Finkel, David. 1974-1975
Box 2	Finnegan, Michael. 1977-1984
Box 2	Fitzgerald, Tom. 1983

Box 2	Foster, Giraud V., 1982
Box 2	Galloway, Alison. 1994-1995
Box 2	Gatliff, Betty. 1979-1983
Box 2	Gibbs, Tyson. 1980
Box 2	Gibson, McGuire, 1972-1979
Box 2	Glassman, David. 1987
Box 2	Goodman, Grant. 1984
Box 2	Gould, L.V., 1977-1978
Box 2	Gulick, John and Martha. 1973
Box 2	Gregg, J.B., 1979
Box 2	Haas, Jonathan. 1978
Box 2	Hanna, Charles. 1979-1980
Box 2	Hanson, Christine. 1980
Box 2	Harris, Edward F., 1981-1989
Box 2	Harris, Oliver G., 1980
Box 2	Hemmings, E. Thomas. 1974
Box 2	Hemphill, Brian E., 1991
Box 2	Hennigar, Gordon R., 1987
Box 2	Heriot, Jean. 1979
Box 2	Herndon, Kriste Shuler. 1996
Box 2	
B0X 2	Himes, John Harter, 1976-1982
Box 2	Himes, John Harter, 1976-1982 Hoffman, J. Michael. 1981-1992

Box 2	Human Biology Council. 1979
Box 2	Hyman, Suzanne. 1986-1987
Box 2	Hunt, Patricia. 1993
Box 2	International Association for Identification. 1986-2002
Box 3	Jelínek, Jan. 1974-1976
Box 3	Joseph, Joe. 1989
Box 3	Johnson, Alfred E., 1983
Box 3	Johnson, H. Ken, 1979
Box 3	Johnston, Cameron E., 1996
Box 3	Johnston, Frank. 1977
Box 3	Kerley, Ellis. 1975-1981
Box 3	Lamberg-Karlovsky, C.C., 1974
Box 3	Larsen, Clark. 1976-1984, 1995
Box 3	Lepionka, Larry Bishop. 1979
Box 3	Liss, Allen S., 1983
Box 3	Logan, Michael. 1980
Box 3	Lovejoy, Owen. 1978
Box 3	Lovell, Nancy. 1998
Box 3	Lovesy, Richard S., 1980
Box 3	Lufkin, Lance. 1977, 1987
Box 3	Lukacs, John R., 1976-1983
Box 3	Macchiarelli, Roberto. 1984-1986
Box 3	Madrid, Alfonso. 1980
Box 3	Mann, Alan. 1977

Box 3	Maples, William R., 1979
Box 3	Marks, Murray. 1989
Box 3	Martin, H. J., 1977
Box 3	McKern, Thomas W., 1971
Box 3	Meiklejohn, Christopher. 1975-1982
Box 3	Mertz, Barbara (Elizabeth Peters). 1987-1988, 1994
Box 3	Metts, James. 1986-1987
Box 3	Michie, James. 1977, 1981
Box 3	Micozzi, Marc S., 1976-1983
Box 3	Milner, George. 1996
Box 3	Molleson, Theya. 1994
Box 3	Moos, Felix. 1970-1971
Box 3	Morse, Dan. 1973
Box 3	Murray, Elizabeth. 1990, 1996
Box 3	Nawrocki, Stephen P., 1993-1994
Box 3	Neighbors, Wayne. 1979-1982
Box 3	Nickels, Martin. 1973-1981
Box 3	Ortner, Don. 1977-1981
Box 3	Owsley, Doug. 1979-1980
Box 3	Pardoe, Colin. 1979
Box 3	Pastor, Robert. 1997
Box 3	Pearson, Bruce. 1976
Box 3	Derzigion Anthony 1091 1094
	Perzigian, Anthony. 1981-1984

Box 3	Pietrusewsky, Michael. 1976-1997
Box 3	Phelps, David. 1986
Box 3	Pollitzer, William. 1980-1986
Box 3	POW-MIA League. 1986
Box 3	Price, Tom. 1971
Box 3	Reichs, Kathleen J., 1983-1984
Box 3	Reinhard, Karl. 1987
Box 3	Rhine, Stan. 1980-1986
Box 3	Rose, Jerome. 1981-1984
Box 3	Safaie, Nouri. 1988-1989
Box 3	Sandford, Mary K., 1988-1989
Box 3	Scurry, James D., 1980
Box 3	Sexton, Joel S., 1973-1979
Box 3	Singleton, Theresa A., 1985
Box 4	Singley, Katherine. 1986
Box 4	Skinner, Mark. 1981-1983
Box 4	Sledzik, Paul. 1990
Box 4	Smith, Carlyle S., 1971
Box 4	Smith, Fred H., 1978-1979
Box 4	Smithsonian Institution National Anthropological Archives 2004
Box 4	Sorg, Marcella. 1983-1984
Box 4	Squier, Robert J., 1969-1972
Box 4	Steckel, Richard H., 1988
Box 4	Steegmann, Ted. 1983

Box 4	Steele, Gentry. 1973, 1985
Box 4	Stephenson, Robert L., 1973
Box 4	Stewart, T. Dale. 1983
Box 4	Stout, Sam. 1986
Box 4	Stronach, David. 1973
Box 4	Strouhal, Eugen. 1973, 1977
Box 4	Suchey, Judy. 1973-1979
Box 4	Swindler, Daris R., 1974-1977
Box 4	Symes, Steve. 1997
Box 4	Tidlow, Evelyn. 1992
Box 4	Tosi, Maurizio. 1974-1979
Box 4	Trinkley, Michael. 1984
Box 4	Ubelaker, Doug. 1977, 1979
Box 4	U.S. State Department Research Documentation and Inventories Division. 1974
Box 4	Waldrip, Edward. 1989, 1996
Box 4	Warrington, Lalage. 1982
Box 4	Watson, Patty Jo. 1974-1975
Box 4	Wheatley, Bruce. 1991-1992
Box 4	Wienker, Curtis W., 1982-1991
Box 4	Willey, Pat. 1973, 1978-1983
Box 4	Wilson, James R., 1971
Box 4	Wilson, Kristin. 1997
Box 4	Wood, Walter. 1990-1992
Box 4	Wright, Newell. 1974-1979

Box 4	y'Enynak, Gloria J., 1976-1978
Box 4	Yoffee, Norman. 1974, 1979-1980
Box 4	Young, T. Cuyler. 1977-1978
Box 4	Zierden, Martha. 1983
Box 4	Zimmerman, Michael R., 1976
Box 4	1973-1980, Colleagues relating to paper written on Iraq and Iran research

Return to Table of Contents

# Series 2: Field Work, 1976-1996, 2001

#### 3.33 Linear feet

Scope and Contents: This series contains Dr Rathbun's field research in South Carolina, Egypt and New Mexico. The folders in Subseries: South Carolina are arranged by the site number or site name. The common name for a location may have more than one site number, in which case the common name is used (e.g., Folly Island, Daw's Island) as the placement in the inventory. Subseries: Egypt contains the work of Rathbun, his wife Babette, and several USC students who participated in the 1977 Hierakonpolis Expedition under the direction of Dr. Renée Friedman. Working in the excavations in the Predynastic Cemetery at HK43, they inventoried and analyzed the skeletal material from HK43. Subseries: Glorieta, New Mexico contains Rathbun's work analyzing the remains from a mass burial of 33 Confederate Soldiers who were killed March 28, 1862.

### 2.1: South Carolina

Box 5	[16MO103. Morehouse County, Louisiana. 1987. Analysis by Rathbun for Brockington & Associates.]
Box 5	[38AK228W. G. S. Lewis-West Site. 1979, 1989, 1990. "Skeletal Analysis of a Sub-Adult Burial from the G. S. Lewis-West Site Feature 79. (38AK228)." Matthew A. Williamson and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 5	[38AK228 Feature 31. G. S. Lewis Site. 1986.]
Box 5	[38AK228, G.S. Lewis, 1992; 38AK228, G.S. Lewis West Site, 1990; 38AL23, 1992; 38CH1210, 1992; 38BK1349, 1992; McKissick 5.905, 1992]
Box 5	[38AK228. 1993. Savannah River Archaeological Research Program.]
Box 5	[38AL2. Cox Site. Skeletal Material. 1979. "Annual Report of Archaeological Investigations by the Savannah River Plant Archaeological Research Project: 1978-1979." Glen T. Hanson and Richard Brooks. Contributions by Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 5	[38AL23. Topper #2, Allendale County, S.C. 1985]
	38BK202 La Sesne Plantation. Mark Clark Expressway. (3 folders)
Box 5	[1984. Locus 1: Daniel's Island. Consultation Agreement.]
Box 5	[1984. Pictures and Slides. Burials 1-5.]
Box 5	[1985. "Osteological Analysis of Human Remains from 38BK202". No date.]
	[38BK1189. St. Stephens, S.C., correspondence with Robert Morgan. 1990] 38BU9 Daw's Island. (6 folders)

Box 5	[Daw's Island Shell Midden Human Remains. Pathology Photographs and Negatives. 1978.]
Box 5	[Photographs and Negatives. Skulls. No date.]
Box 5	[Calculations. Human Remains. 1978.]
Box 5	[No 2. Jim Michie. 1974.]
Box 5	[X-Rays. No date.]
Box 5	[Proposal to the National Science Foundation (NSF). 1980. "The Prehistoric Human Ecology of the Daw's Island Midden (38BU9), Beaufort County, SC."
	38BU114 Daw's Island. (3 folders)
Box 5	[Burial 1 Burial 6. "Bioarchaeology of Daw's Island (38BU114): A Preliminary Report". 1993. Jennifer Haas.]
Box 5	[1994. "Skeletal Analysis of Remains from Daw's Island (38BU115)." 1995. Jason Kosove and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 5	[1992. Slides and Field Book.]
Box 5	[38BU19. Callawassie Island. 1982.]
Box 5	[38BU19. Callawassie Island. 1982. "Skeletal Remains from 38BU19, Preliminary Field Evaluation. Burials excavated March 6 & 7, 1982." Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 5	[38BU68. Pickney Island, S.C., 1980.]
Box 5	[38BU68. 1981. "Studies of Three Woodland Period Sites in Beaufort County, S.C.". Michael Trinkley.]
Box 5	[38BU153. Report by Rathbun on human remains. 1990.]
Box 5	[38BU398. Callawassie Island, Beaufort Co., S.C. 1987. Facial Reproduction of Prehistoric Indian. S. C. State Museum. Report and Slides.]
Box 5	[38BU398. Callawassie Island. Notes and calculations by Thomas A. J. Crist. 1998.]
Box 5	[38BU1689. Beaufort, S.C. 1997. Chicora Foundation. Suzanne Coyle and Ted Rathbun.]
	38CH434 Belleview Plantation. (12 folders)

Box 5	[Edward Croft. "The Search for Edward Croft: a historical and osteological analysis of a Colonial South Carolina skeletal population." Ted A. Rathbun and James D. Scurry. 1982. Presentation copy and notes for the S.C. Archeology Conference.]
Box 5	[Edward Croft. Genealogy Correspondence. 2001.]
Box 6	["Frequency Distribution of Lead Content in Skeletal Populations from Virginia, Georgia, Maryland and Belleview Plantation SC." 1986. James D. Scurry.]
Box 6	["Health and Disease in Colonial South Carolina." 1982-1983. Proposal to International Lead Zinc Research Organization (ILZRO).]
Box 6	["An Intensive Archaeological Survey of the South Carolina State Ports Authority's Belleview Plantation, Charleston, South Carolina. 1980. James D. Scurry and Mark J. Brooks.]
Box 6	[Field Notes. Lead Analyses. 1981-1983. Correspondence with Arthur C. Aufderheide (U of Minnesota). 1979 Report from 18 FR 323 Catoctin (MD) Historic Cemetery Site.]
Box 6	[Field Notes. 1983. Analysis of Variance from James Scurry. Comparisons with Belleview, Cliffs Plantation, College Landing, Catoctin Furnace (MD).]
Box 6	[Lead Analyses. Georgia Slaves. 1983. Correspondence with Arthur Aufderheide (U of Minnesota) and Clark Larsen (SE Massachusetts Univ).]
Box 6	[Lead Analysis Comparison between Belleview Plantation and Cliffs Plantation. 1981?]
Box 6	[Notes and Correspondence with J. Lawrence Angel (SI-NMNH) and Arthur C. Aufderheide (U of Minnesota). 1982-1983.]
Box 6	[Slides.]
Box 6	["What Mean These Bones? Studies in Southeastern Bioarchaeology." 1991. Correspondence with Mary L. Powell, University of Alabama Press.]
38	CH778. Mt. Pleasant Black Cemetery (25 folders)
Box 6	[Bone Data.]
Box 6	[Bone Samples Analysis. J. Benton Jones. Univ. of Georgia. 1987.]
Box 6	[Comparisons with Hutson Crypt. 1986.]

Box 6	[Correspondence with Brockington, Henry C. Wingo re: Cemetery Relocation Project. Initial Findings.]
Box 6	[Correspondence]
Box 6	[Drawings, Skeletal Inventory Sheets, Cranial Measurements and Calculations.] (Folders 1 &2 in Box 27)
Box 7	[Drawings, Skeletal Inventory Sheets, Cranial Measurements and Calculations.] (Folders 3 & 4 in Box 28)
Box 7	[Expenses. 1984.]
Box 7	[Femur Cortical Area, Thickness. Christopher Ruff (Johns Hopkins Univ.). 1987.]
Box 7	[Femur Cortical Area Calculations. 1986. Preliminary Draft of AAPA paper: "Cortical Bone Maintenance in an Historic Black Cemetery from Cedar Grove, AK."]
Box 7	[Femur Cortical Thickness Calculations. 1986.]
Box 7	[Hodgson Collection, Poundbury Camp, Stature 38CH778.]
Box 7	[Laboratory Notebook Number 1. May-Oct, 1985. Multi-element quantative analysis of bone samples using ICP Spectroscopy. Arthur Nobile, Jr.]
Box 7	[Laboratory Notebook Number 2. November, 1985. Continuation of the multi-element quantative analysis of bone samples using ICP Spectroscopy. Arthur Nobile, Jr.]
Box 7	[Slides. Femur Sections. 1986.]
Box 7	[Soil and Bone Chemistry Analysis. J. Benton Jones. Univ. of Georgia. 1986-1987.]
Box 7	[Soil Samples Analysis. J. Benton Jones. Univ. of Georgia. 1986.]
Box 7	["Textile Fragments Recovered from a Slave Cemetery in South Carolina." 1994. Patricia K. Hunt, Univ. of Georgia.]
Box 7	[Trace Elements. 1987-1988]
Box 8	[Trace Element Analysis of Bone and Soil. 1986. Thomas A. J. Crist]
Box 8	[Trace Element Analysis and Ttests for Bones. 1986. Thomas A. J. Crist.]
Box 8	[Trace Element Analysis by Age. 1989. Thomas A. J. Crist.]

Box 8	[Trace Element Analysis of Soil. 1989. Thomas A. J. Crist]
Box 8	[38CH779. Housed at Charleston Museum. 1984.]
	38CH920 Folly Island (18 folders)
Box 8	[Archaeology Reports. 1987-1988. "Management Summary Archaeological investigations on Folly Island […] Sites 38CH964, 38CH965, 38CH966". 1988. Steven D. Smith and Lisa D. O'Steen. Management Summary of Archaeological Investigations at a Civil War Cemetery…".1987. Sharon L. Pekrul, Keith M. Derting, Steven D. Smith.]
Box 8	["Comparison of Strontium Levels in Three Antebellum Populations: Dietary and Social Implications." Christopher Reed. No date.]
Box 8	[Femur Cortical Thickness and Area. 1991.]
Box 8	[Femur Cortical Thickness and % Area. 1989-1990. Matt Williamson. Comparisons between Folly Island and Cedar Grove Cemetery, Arkansas.]
Box 8	[Femur Trace Elements. 1989-1990.]
Box 8	[Harris Line Measurements. N. Greulich. 1991]
Box 8	[Inventory Sheets. 1988-1989.] 2 folders
Box 9	[Linear Enamel Hypoplasia reports. "Childhood Health in Historic Sites: Did it matter if you were white, black, a slave, or free?". Natalie Greulich. 1991.]
Box 9	[National Science Foundation (NSF) Proposal. 1987]
Box 9	[Photograph Logs. 1989.]
Box 9	[Soil Samples. 1989-1990.]
Box 9	[Trace Elements. 1989-1990.]
Box 9	["Trace Elements as Indicators of Past Diets." Patrice White. Glorieta/ Folly Comparisons.]
Box 9	[Civil War. Articles. 1987. Notes on Civil War Burials.]
Box 9	[Civil War. Articles. 1987-1988.]
Box 9	[Civil War. Presentation Notes on Cortical Defects of the 55th Massachusetts Volunteer Regiment. Patti Byra. 1992.]

Box 9	[Civil War. "Record of the Service of the Fifty-fifth Massachusetts Volunteer Infantry." 1868; reprint 1971.]
Box 9	[Civil. War. Site Notes. 1987-1988]
Box 9	[38CH1210. Mt. Pleasant Burial. 1990-1991. Natalie Greulich and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 9	[38CN200. Edisto Beach. 1993. Frank Morning.]
Box 9	[38CN200. Edisto Beach. 1993-1994. Wendi G. O'Connor.]
Box 9	[38CR19/40. Santee River. "Skeletal Analysis of Remains Washed Out on Bluff in Santee River, S.C. (38CR 19/40)." 1994. Jonathan K. Kalmey and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 9	[38CT16 and 38CT25. 1996. Brockington & Associates. Eric C. Poplin, PhD., Scotty V. Law.]
Box 9	[38DR152. Old Dorchester State Park. 1991]
	[38ED9. Mims Point. 1992. Forest Service.
Box 9	"Human Skeletal Remains from 38ED9." Ted A. Rathbun, Dean Foster, and Daniel Kysar.
Box 9	"Human Osteological Remains from the Mim's Point Site." Daniel A. Kysar.
Box 9	"An Analysis of the Skeletal Remains from Feature Six at Site 38ED9, Edfield County, S.C.," Dean C. Foster. 1992.
Box 9	"An Analysis of the Skeletal remains from Feature Nine at Site 38ed9, Edfield County, S.C., Dean C. Foster. 1992
Box 9	"Proposal for Archaeological Testing at Mims Point Site (38ED9, Sumter National Forest, South Carolina. 1991. Kenneth E. Sassaman]
Box 9	[38ED9. Mims Point. 1992. Forest Service. "Archaeological Investigations at a Prehistoric Habitation Site in the Sumter National Forest, S.C.". 1993. Kenneth E. Sassaman. Contributions by Ted A. Rathbun and others.]
Box 9	[38ED9. Mims Point. 1992. Forest Service. Slides. 1992]
Box 9	[38GE7. Wachesaw Landing. 1985-1986. Burial Data (1, 2, 3, 4), and Analysis.]
Box 9	[38GE7. Wachesaw Landing. 1986. "Human Remains from 38GE7". Ted A. Rathbun.]

Box 9	[38GE7. Wachesaw landing. 1981-1982. UNC-CH Site Number SOCV529. Michael Trinkley]
Box 10	[38GE46. Minim Island. 1988-1989. "Human Remains from 38GE46." Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 10	[38GN2-240. Burial 1. 1976.]
Box 10	[38HA2. Stokes Bluff Landing. 1994. "Report on Cremated Remains from 38HA2."]
	[38HA148. Groton Plantation. 1992. "An Analysis of the Skeletal Material Recovered from Pothole 104 at Site 38HA148, Hampton County, S.C.". Dean C. Foster.] 38HR36 Holliday Site
Box 10	[1983-1984; Coastal Carolina College USC project. "A Report on Archaeological Testing at the Holliday sites". 1981. Edward O. Lewis; "Preliminary Inventory and Analysis of Skeletal Material from Holliday Site." 1983. Suzanne Hyman.]
Box 10	[Summer I Field School. 1984. Anthropology 591S.]
Box 10	[Summer 1985. Anthropology 591S and 591T.]
Box 10	[Summer School. 1985.]
Box 10	[1983. "Preliminary Inventory and Analysis of Skeletal Material from the Holliday sites". Suzanne Hyman.]
Box 10	[Feature 5. New Skull 6. Holladay Site. 1996, 1999.]
Box 10	[38KE12. Mulberry Site. Notes and Correspondence. 1980, 1981, 1986]
Box 10	[38KE12. Mulberry Mound. 1991. Anna Mulcahey. "Lab Project Post Cranium". 1987. 38KE12PH2.]
Box 10	[38KE18. Ferry Landing. 1990-1991.]
Box 10	[38KE18. Ferry Landing. 1991. Student Papers: Natalie A. Greulich, Niels Taylor, Darwin Ramsey-Styer, Elizabeth Cates, Patti Byra.]
Box 10	[38SP105 and 38SP106. 1989. "Human Remains from 38SP105 and 38SP106." Ted A. Rathbun. New South Associates.]
Box 10	[Battery Creek Bridge. Beaufort County. 1992. Wayne Roberts, SCDHPT]
Box 10	[Boone Hall Plantation. 1986.]
Box 10	[Brown's Ferry (S.C.) Mandible. 1976.]

Box 10	[Buckhall. 1990. Linda F. Stine.]
Box 10	[Charleston Museum. 1974]
Box 10	[Confederate Naval Cemetery. Charleston. 1993.]
Box 10	[German Lutheran Cemetery, Charleston, S.C., 1982.]
Box 10	[Huguenot Church, Charleston, SC., 1989. "Proposal for Archaeological and Osteological Research: The Huguenot Church". Martha Zierden]
Box 10	[Hutson Crypt. Circular Congregational Church. Charleston. Linear Enamel Hypoplasia Records. 1984.]
Box 11	[Hutson Crypt. Circular Congregational Church. Charleston. Measurements and Calculations. 1984.] 3 folders
Box 11	[Hutson Crypt. Circular Congregational Church. Charleston. Notes and Correspondence.1984.]
Box 11	[Hutson Crypt. Circular Congregational Church. Charleston. Slides and Photographs. 1984.]
Box 11	[Lewis Creek. "A Savannah II Burial from the Lewis Creek Site, McIntosh County, Georgia." 1973. M.W. Neighbors and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 11	[Lewis Creek. "A Preliminary Report on Skeletal Material from Lewis Creek & Sea Palms, Georgia". 1977. Jim Sexton and Ted Rathbun.]
Box 11	[Lewis Creek. "A Savannah II Burial from the Lewis Creek Site, McIntosh County, Georgia." 1980. Wayne Neighbors and Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 11	[Robert J. McIntyre Farm, Wahee Section, Marion Co., S.C. 1986. Inventory for Robin M. Moseley.]
Box 11	[McKissick. 5.905. McKissick Museum. 1990-1991.]
Box 11	[Old Dorchester. 1990. "Human Remains from Old Dorchester." Ted A. Rathbun.]
Box 11	[PonPon Woman. 1978. Stanley G. Knick III. "An Unusual Dental Attrition Pattern from South Carolina Archaeology."]
Box 11	[Savannah Wildlife Refuge, Jasper County, SC., 1979]
Box 11	S.C. Skeletal Material. ["The Thom's Creek Phase: Cultural Ecology and Subsistence. No date. Michael Trinkley; Letter from W. R. Simpson, 1977.]
Box 11	[Stone Branch Church. 1990-1991. Robert Brooks.]

Box 11	[Trinkley, Michael. Papers on various S.C. sites. 1975 and no dates; Correspondence with Rathbun. 1982.]
Box 11	[Unknown Site. 1995. "Skeletal Analysis of Human Remains submitted by Brockington & Associates". Jon Kalmey.]
Box 11	[U.S. Forest Service. 1989. "Action Plan for the Treatment of Human Remains of the Francis Marion and Sumter National Forests."]
Box 11	[Wando River Excavations. 1980]
2.2: Egypt	
Box 12	[Correspondence with Renée Friedman and other participants, 1996-1997. "Report to the Supreme Council of Antiquities on the 1996 Field Season of the Hierakonpolis Expedition" "Report to the Supreme Council of Antiquities on the 1997 Field Season of the Hierakonpolis Expedition"]
Box 12	[Correspondence with Roxie Walker and other participants, 1988-1989. Pictures of group on site]
Box 12	[Field Journal 1997 Season Hierakonpolis, Egypt]
Box 12	[Journal, Visa application, Trip expenses. "Proposal for the establishment of the Institute for Bioanthropological Sciences." Correspondence with Mrs. Roxie Walker, 1988]
Box 12	[Travel information and finances, 1996, 1997]
Box 12	[USC Research and Productive Scholarship (RPS) application for Egypt field work, 1996]

# 2.3: Glorieta, NM

Box 12	[Descriptions of Burials, 1990]
Box 12	[Femur Cortical Thickness data, 1990]
Box 12	[Femur and Teeth Inventory and Slides, 1990]
Box 12	[Information from the Museum of New Mexico, Ann Noble, 1990]
Box 12	[Linear Enamel Hypoplasis (LEH) Analysis]
Box 12	[Newspaper articles, 1987]
Box 12	[Soil Analysis, 1990]

### Box 12 [Trace Element Analysis, 1990]

Return to Table of Contents

# Series 3: Consulting Work, 1973-2012

#### 7.1 Linear feet

Scope and Rathbun was noted for his expertise in the analysis of human skeletal material. At the time of his retirement he was the only Board Certified Forensic Anthropologist in South Carolina. In addition to his teaching career at University of South Carolina he was a consultant to various law enforcement agencies, the military and historical organizations. This series contains those papers.

### 3.1: General

Scope and Contents:	SUBSERIES: GENERAL - Contains Rathbun's files from Philadelphia's Tenth Street First African Baptist Church Cemetery project, training and consulting to South Carolina judicial agencies, and his visiting lecture programs to other universities.
Box 13	[Allen Plantation Contract. March 1980. CAS - Carolina Archaeological Services]
Box 13	[Cedar Grove Cemetery. Arkansas. 1983]
Box 13	[General Services Administration (GSA), 1993, Peer Review Panelist for the Foley Square (NYC) African Burial Ground Project]
Box 13	[HBO (Home Box Office): "Autopsy 3"/Folly Island Excavation. 1996.]
Box 13	[South Carolina Criminal Justice Academy Coroners Training. 1996.]
Box 13	[South Carolina Criminal Justice Academy Homicide School. 1991.]
Box 13	[South Carolina Division IAI (International Association for Identification) Skeletal Recovery Workshop. Speakers: Ted Rathbun and Jim Adcock. 1997.]
Box 13	[South Carolina Judicial System. 1991]
Box 13	[South Carolina State Board of Funeral Services, 1990-1991, Continuing Education Seminars]
Box 13	[Tenth Street First African Baptist Church Cemetery. 36PH72. Philadelphia. Correspondence with John Milner Associates. 1992-1993.]
Box 13	[Tenth Street First African Baptist Church Cemetery. 36PH72. Philadelphia. Draft Report. 1995. [2 folders]
Box 13	[Tenth Street First African Baptist Church Cemetery. 36PH72. Philadelphia. Final Report. 1997. [2 folders]
Box 13	[Trinity Church Cemetery: Skeletal Analysis Proposal; Newark, N.J., 1994]
Box 13	[US Army Corps NAGRA Proposal. 1995]

Box 13	[University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 1992, Department of Anthropology]
Box 13	[University of Tennessee, 1999, External Review of UT Department of Anthropology]
Box 13	[University of Tennessee at Knoxville, Anthropology Department Visiting Lecture Program, 1990. "Skulls and Faces: Facial Reconstruction and Video Superimposition";"Soldiers and Slaves: Nineteenth Century Biohistory"]
Box 13	[Wilber Smith and Associates. 1981]
Box 13	[World Book Publishing. "Uncovering African American's Buried Past," Lesley M. Rankin-Hill. 1993. Ted Rathbun contributed photographs from 38CH778 (Mt. Pleasant Black Cemetery). Includes correspondence and contract.]

# 3.2: CILHI

Scope and Contents: SUBSERIES: CILHI --This subseries makes up the bulk of the series and contains his work as a forensic consultant to the U.S. Army's Central Identification Laboratory Hawaii (CILHI) from 1993 to 2012 and as a Visiting Scientist in 1987. He traveled to the laboratory in Hawaii frequently to consult on the cases, as well as to review progress and procedures concerning the identification of case files. The Laboratory Visit reports are at the beginning of the sequence. He also reviewed numerous cases of military (and civilian) remains from the Vietnam, Korea, and WWII eras. During this time CILHI changed its identification scheme from Case#-Year to Year-Case#. For archival purposes all case files have been sequenced in Year-Case# order. His CILHI files donated in 2013 were added to the end of the subseries and are organized by his date of involvement and not by case year.

Box 14	[CILHI Correspondence. 1988 and 1999.]
	CILHI Laboratory Visits (9 folders)
Box 14	[May, 1993]
Box 14	[May, 1994]
Box 14	[December, 1994]
Box 14	[May, 1995]
Box 14	[December, 1995]
Box 14	[July, 1996]
Box 14	[October, 1997]
Box 14	[July, 1998]

Box 14	[May, 1999]
	1983 CILHI Case Files
	[1983-0042] [CILHI 0042-83A. (WWII New Guinea).
Box 14	Buford, Owen L. 0-801242 1st Lt., USAAF
Box 14	Hill, Gerald R. 0-683822 2nd Lt., USAAF
Box 14	Meyer, Paul G. 0-684759 2nd Lt., USAAF
Box 14	Rosher, Jack W. 0-679230 2nd Lt., USAAF
Box 14	Potter, Ned 14051455 TSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Witt, Robert W. 37231163 TSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Miller, Julian S. 34434716 SSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Parks, James J. 36408515 SSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Rode, Kenneth W. 1106337 SSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Turner, Willard L. 35450936 SSgt., USAAF]
	1986 CILHI Case Files
	[1986-0041] [CILHI 0041-86. REFNO 0350
Box 14	Shingledecker, Armon D. 286-34-0953 Capt., USAFR]
	[CILHI 1986-047-G-01, 1986-047-I-01, 1986-047-X-01. REFNO 0996.
Box 14	Wallace, Hobart McKinley, Jr. 236-50-9268 Lt. Col, USMC
Box 14	Murray, Patrick Peter 473-46-3436 Major, USMC]
	1987 CILHI Case Files
	[1987-0013] [CILHI 0013-87. (WWII France).
Box 14	Weiss, Don L. 0-437629 Lt. Col., USAAC]
	[1987-0014] [CILHI 0014-87. (WWII France).
Box 14	Hazlett, George H., Jr. 0-794005 1st Lt., USAAC]

	[1987-0015] [CILHI 0015-87. (WWII France).
Box 14	Meserow, David 0-732880 1st Lt., USAAC]
	[1987-0016] [CILHI 0016-87. (WWII France).
Box 14	Slustrop, Alex P. 0-738483 1st Lt., USAAC]
	[1987-0017] [CILHI 0017-87. Group Remains 5-91. (WWII France).
Box 14	Weiss, Don L. 0-437629 Lt. Col., USAAC
Box 14	Hazlett, George H., Jr. 0-794005 1st Lt., USAAC
Box 14	Meserow, David 0-732880 1st Lt., USAAC
Box 14	Slustrop, Alex P. 0-738483 1st Lt., USAAC]
	[1987-0085A] [CILHI 0085-87A. (WWII-Alaska).
Box 14	Bennett, Harold D. 217368 Ensign, USCG]
	[1987-0085B] [CILHI 0085-87B. (WWII-Alaska).
Box 14	Bull, Clifton W. 238209 AAM1c, USCG]
	[1987-0085C [CILHI 0085-87C. Group Remains 2-92. (WWII Alaska).
Box 14	Bennett, Harold D. 217368 Ensign, USCG
Box 14	Bull, Clifton W. 238209 AAM1c, USCG
Box 14	Cole, James W. 217001 CRM, USCG
Box 14	Unknown]
	1988 CILHI Case Files
	[1988-0026] [CILHI 0026-88 (CILHI 0210-93, CILHI 1998-15). REFNO 0722.
Box 14	Robinson, Lewis Merritt 384-16-7016 Lt., Col., USAF]
	[1988-0061] [CILHI 0061-88
Box 14	Blood, Henry Florentine 542-20-4026 U.S. Civilian]
	[1988-083] [CILHI 1988-083-I-01. REFNO 1049.

Box 14	Elliot, Robert Malcom 021-22-8214 Col., USAFR]
	[1988-0203] [CILHI 0203-88. REFNO 0500
Box 14	Edwards, Harry Sanford, Jr. 260-66-7487 LCDR., USN]
	[1988-0231] [CILHI 0231-88. REFNO 1079
Box 14	Olds, Ernest Arthur 339-28-2027 Col., USAF]
	[1988-0233] [CILHI 0233-88. REFNO 1898
Box 14	Huard, James Linton 384-44-7149 Capt., USAFR]
	1989 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 1989-007-I-01
Box 14	Hammond, Dennis Wayne 375-50-6720 SSgt., USMC] .
	[1989-0065] [CILHI 0065-89
Box 14	Rawlings, James A. 577-50-1942 U.S. Civilian] [See Also CILHI 0189-93]
	[1989-0089] [CILHI 0089-89
Box 14	Young, Robert Milton 195-36-6164 CPT., USA]
	[CILHI 1989-097-I-01
Box 14	Hertz, Gustav Crane. US Citizen]
	[1989-0102B] [CILHI 0102-89B. REFNO 1575.
Box 14	Butler, James Edward 241-50-8976 CW3., USAR]
	[1989-0106] [CILHI 0106-89A and CILHI 0106-89B
Box 14	Johns, Vernon Z. 218-42-2031 SgtFirstClass, USA]
	[1989-0137] [CILHI 0137-89. REFNO 0265
Box 14	Page, Gordon Lee 564-40-5348 Col., USAF]
	[1989-0141] [CILHI 0141-89. REFNO 0391
Box 14	Wilkins, George Henry 237-40-0735 CDR., USN]

	[1989-0144] [CILHI 0144-89. REFNO 0782
Box 14	Cunningham, Carey Allen 254-56-6173 Capt., USAFR]
	[1989-0145A] [CILHI 0145-89A
Box 14	Karst, Carl F. 511-32-4108 Col., USAF]
	[1989-0145C] [CILHI 0145-89C. Group Remains 9-93.
Box 14	Karst, Carl F. 511-32-4108 Col., USAF
Box 14	Nguyen, S. Quy Captain, VNAF]
Box 14	[1989-165] [CILHI 1989-165-I-01. (WWII New Guinea).
Box 14	Blakey, Frank H. 0-313445 Major, USAAF]
	[CILHI 1989-178-I-01
Box 14	Hall, James Wayne 442-34-9690 CDR., USN]
	[CILHI 1989-212-I-01. REFNO 0677
Box 14	Netherland, Roger Morton 194-14-0386 Capt., USN]
	[1989-0213] [CILHI 0213-89A
Box 14	Barr, John F. 429-56-6949 LCDR USN]
	1990 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 1990-186-G01, 1990-186-I-01, 1990-186-I-02, 1990-186-I-03, 1990-186-I-04, 1990-186-I-05, 1990-186-I-06, 1990-186-I-07. (WWII New Guinea).
Box 14	Drewelow, Raymond J. 0-681356 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 14	Ellison, George R. 0-1686420 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 14	Nelson, James H. 0-808118 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 14	Sparks, Edward M. 0-686504 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 14	Elhai, Salvatore J. 32342549 SSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Swartz, Arthur J. 16067751 SSgt., USAAF

Box 14	Williams, Joel G. 13119200 SSgt., USAAF
Box 14	Scaccia, Anthony G. 28194418 Sgt., USAAF
Box 14	Smith, Gilbert F. 35494264 Sgt., USAAF
Box 14	VanCamp, William E. 15374878 Sgt., USAAF]
	[1990-0193] [CILHI 0193-90
Box 14	Sullivan, John B., III 172-32-3932 Major, USAF]
	[1990-0194] [CILHI 0194-90
Box 14	Donnelly, Verne G. 553-38-0105 Capt., USN]
	[1990-0195] [CILHI 0195-90
Box 14	Salzarulo, Raymond P. 289-38-0698 Capt., USAF]
	[1990-0197] [CILHI 0197-90]
Box 14	Hauer, Leslie J. 386-12-5673 Col., USAF]
	[1990-0201] [CILHI 0201-90
Box 14	Sprague, Stanley G. 504-22-4258 Major, USAF]
	[1990-0202] [CILHI 0202-90. REFNO 1882
Box 14	McCarty, James Lon 457-78-9143 Capt., USAFR]
	[1990-0205] [CILHI 0205-90
Box 14	Carpenter, Nicholas M. 270-38-7431 LCDR, USN]
	[1990-0207] [CILHI 0207-90
Box 14	Shumway, Geoffrey R. 106-34-2668 LCDR, USN]
	[1990-0208] [CILHI 0208-90
Box 14	Cuthbert, Stephen H. 557-58-1168 Major, USAF]
	[1990-0209] [CILHI 0209-90

	[1990-0213] [CILHI 0213-90. (WWII Europe).
Box 14	Allen, Ray Wallace 0-754455 1st Lt., USAAC]
	1991 CILHI Case Files
	[1991-0029 [CILHI 0029-91. REFNO 1705
Box 14	Crandall, Gregory S. 499-52-6352 W01, USA]
	[1991-0030] [CILHI 0030-91. REFNO 1705
Box 14	Engen, Robert J. 501-56-5469 SP4, USA]
	[1991-0031] [CILHI 0031-91. Group Remains 03-91. REFNO 1705.
Box 14	Engen, Robert J. 501-56-5469 SP4, USA
Box 14	Lewellen, Walter E. 306-54-3546 Sgt., USA]
	[1991-0041] [CILHI 0041-91
Box 14	Williams, Howard K. 293-30-3398 Lt. Col., USAF]
	1992 CILHI Case Files
	[1992-0010] [CILHI 0010-92
Box 14	Pearson, Wayne E. 359-30-6851 Major, USAF]
	[1992-0031] [CILHI 0031-92
Box 14	Colne, Roger A. French Citizen, NBC News Crew]
	[1992-0032] [CILHI 0032-92 REFNO 1626
Box 14	Hangen, Wells 085-24-6526 US Civilian]
	[1992-0033] [CILHI 0033-92 REFNO 1626
Box 14	Waku, Yoshihiko Japanese Civilian]
	[1992-0034] [CILHI 0034-92 REFNO 1626
Box 14	Sakai, Kojiro Japanese Civilian, CBS News]
	[1992-0035-0038] [CILHI 0035-92, CILHI 0036-92, CILHI 0037-92A, CILHI 0037-92B, CILHI 0038-92. REFNO 0017.

Box 14	Purcell, Howard Philip 192-26-0876 Capt., USAFR (0035-92)
Box 14	McKinney, Neil Bernard 303-32-4010 1st Lt., USAFR (0036-92)
Box 14	Cruz, Raphael 557-42-4275 SSgt., USAFR (0038-92)
Box 14	Unknown South Vietnamese National (0037-92B)
Box 14	Group Remains of above four people. (0037-92A)]
	[1992-0039] [CILHI 0039-92
Box 14	Branch, James A. 408-50-4000 Lt. Col., USAF]
	[CILHI 1992-101-I-01. (Korea)
Box 14	Katzman, William Ross 55032412 Pfc., USA]
	[1992-0102] [CILHI 0102-92 Group Remains 1-92.
Box 14	Squire, Boyd E. 529-32-6721 Lt. Col., USAFR
Box 14	Dove, Jack P. 226-50-1321 Capt., USAFR]
	[1992-0103] [CILHI 0103-92
Box 14	Condit, Douglas C. 543-42-3572 Major, USAF]
	[1992-0104] [CILHI 0104-92. REFNO 0804
Box 14	Sittner, Ronald N. 282-34-6789 Major, USAF]
	[1992-0106] [CILHI 0106-92
Box 14	Trujillo, Joseph F. 585-14-1570 Gunnery Sgt., USMC]
	[1992-0107] [CILHI 0107-92A and CILHI 0107-92B. REFNO 1141.
Box 15	Parker, Woodrow Wilson, II 259-66-3399 Maj., USAFR
Box 15	Vinson, Bobby Gene 456-34-7170 Col., USAF]
	[1992-0122] [CILHI 0122-92 (Korea)
Box 15	Clements, David C. AO-1856697 1st Lt., USAF]

Box 15	Biscailuz, Robert L. 562-62-5624 Lance Cpl., USMC]
	[1992-137B [CILHI 0137-92B REFNO 0777
Box 15	Byars, Earnest R. 452-74-2588 Lance Cpl., USMC]
	[1992-137C] [CILHI 0137-92C REFNO 0777
Box 15	Frederick, David A. 137-32-4402 Capt., USMC]
	[1992-137D] [CILHI 0137-92D REFNO 0777
Box 15	Waterman, Craig H. 021-34-0138 1st Lt., USMC]
	[1992-137E] [CILHI 0137-92E Group Remains 1-93 REFNO 0777
Box 15	Biscailuz, Robert L. 562-62-5624 Lance Cpl., USMC
Box 15	Byars, Earnest R. 452-74-2588 Lance Cpl., USMC
Box 15	Frederick, David A. 137-32-4402 Capt., USMC
Box 15	Waterman, Craig H. 021-34-0138 1st Lt., USMC]
	[CILHI 1992-201-G-01, 1992-201-I-01, 1992-201-I-02, 1992-201-I-03, 1992-201-I-04, 1992-201-I-05. (WWII Philippines).
Box 15	Chalifoux, Wallace W. 0-753610 1stLt., USAAF
Box 15	Bauer, August F. 0-706504 1stLt., USAAF
Box 15	Davis, Neil B. 0-782489 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 15	Orloff, John S. 32747032 SSgt., USAAF
Box 15	Panciocco, Paul J. 31302176 SSgt., USAAF
Box 15	O'Donnell, John C. 16031023 TSgt., USAAF]
	[CILHI 1992-209-A-01. REFNO 0158
Box 15	Scharf, Charles Joseph 561-44-5885 Col., USAF]
	1993 CILHI Case Files
	[1993-0008] [CILHI 0008-93
Box 15	Hall, Harley H. 549-50-3460 Captain, USN]

	[1993-0015] [CILHI 0015-93. REFNO 1983
Box 15	Cressman, Peter Richard 148-46-5985 Sgt., USAF]
	[1993-0016] [CILHI 0016-93. Group 7-93. REFNO 1983.
Box 15	Spitz, George Ross 576-42-0680 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Bollinger, Arthur Ray 321-36-7533 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Melton, Todd Michael 392-48-8837 SSgt., USAF
Box 15	Primm, Severo, James, III 438-70-3023 1Lt., USAF
Box 15	Cressman, Peter Richard 148-46-5985 Sgt., USAF
Box 15	Matejob, Joseph Andrew 078-44-6793 Sgt., USAF
Box 15	Brandenburg, Dale 215-44-5018 Sgt., USAF]
	[1993-0019A] [CILHI 0019-93A
Box 15	Borton, Robert C., Jr. 492-48-6171 Gunnery Sgt., USMC]
	[1993-0021A] [CILHI 0021-93A. REFNO 1092.
Box 15	Ross, Jlynn, Jr. 373-48-3111 SSgt., USA]
	[1993-0022] [CILHI 0022-93
Box 15	Collazao, Raphael L. 558-68-2599 Sgt., USA]
	[1993-0050] [CILHI 0050-93. (Korea)
Box 15	McIntosh, Henry, Jr. SN: ER-33728122 Sgt., USA]
	[1993-0057] [CILHI 0057-93
Box 15	Wax, David J. 027-30-1862 1st Lt., USAF]
	[1993-0062] [CILHI 0062-93. Group Remains 13-94. REFNO 0955.
Box 15	Potter, William J. 190-26-9566 Lt., Col., USAF
Box 15	Cruz, Carlos R. 500-46-6176 Maj., USAF
Box 15	Foster, Paul L. 408-76-9264 SMSgt., USAF]

	[1993-0090ABC, 1992-0205] [CILHI 0090-93A, CILHI 0090-93B, CILHI 0090-93C, (CILHI 0205-92). REFNO 0778.
Box 15	Allen, Thomas Ray 447-36-3086 Major, USAF
Box 15	Packard, Ronald Lyle 524-48-4149 Capt., USAFR]
	[1993-0092A] [CILHI 0092-93A. REFNO 1812.
Box 15	Frink, John W. 585-36-1902 WO1, USA]
	[1993-0092B] [CILHI 0092-93B. REFNO 1812. Group Remains
Box 15	Frink, John W. 585-36-1902 WO1, USA
Box 15	Paschall, Ronald P. 534-54-3632 SP5, USA
Box 15	Kullard, Bryon K. 501-56-1364 1Lt, USA]
	[CILHI 1993-094-G-01, 1993-094-I-01. REFNO 0625
Box 15	Morrill, David Whittier 030-22-6235 Major, USMC
Box 15	Parker, Maxim Charles 551-62-4633 2ndLt., USMCR]
	[1993-0099] [CILHI 0099-93
Box 15	Duffy, John Everett 005-46-0616 Capt., USAF]
	[1993-0120] [CILHI 0120-93
Box 15	Hood, Walter Leroy RA-19323796 SFC., USA]
	[CILHI 1993-148-G01, 1993-148-I-1. REFNO 1979.
Box 15	Clark, Robert Alan 555-66-5703 Lt., USNR
Box 15	McCormick, Michael Timothy 575-50-3320 Lt., USNR]
	[1993-0149] [CILHI 0149-93. REFNO 0279
Box 15	Davis, Brent Eden 227-48-7949 Major, USMC]
	[1993-0160] [CILHI 0160-93A. REFNO 1650.
Box 15	Bloodworth, Donald Bruce 545-62-8631 Capt., USAFR]
	[CILHI 1993-184-I-01. REFNO 1210

Box 15	Chandler, Anthony Gordon 256-64-5333 BM2., USN]
	[1993-0186A] [CILHI 0186-93A. REFNO 1879.
Box 15	Mercer, Jacob E. 263-60-4918 SMSgt, USAF]
	[1993-0186B] [CILHI 0186-93B. REFNO 1879.
Box 15	Ayers, Gerald F. 172-32-0880 Major, USAF]
	[1993-0186C] [CILHI 0186-93C. REFNO 1879.
Box 15	Danielson, Mark G. 529-56-2456 Captain, USAF]
	[1993-0186D] [CILHI 0186-93D. Group Remains 8-93. REFNO 1879.
Box 15	Newman, Larry J. TSgt
Box 15	Mercer, Jacob E. SMSgt, USAF
Box 15	Gilbert, Paul F. Capt.
Box 15	Wilson, Robert A. Capt.
Box 15	Ayers, Gerald F. Major, USAF
Box 15	Hunt, Leon A. SSgt.
Box 15	Nyhof, Richard E. TSgt.
Box 15	Harrison, Robert H. Maj.
Box 15	Klinke, Donald H. TSgt.
Box 15	Danielson, Mark G. Capt., USAF
Box 15	Lehrke, Stanley L. SSgt.
Box 15	Cole, Richard M. TSgt.]
	[1993-188] [CILHI 193-188-G-001, I-001 and I-002. REFNO 0229.
Box 15	Williams, Thaddeus Edward, Jr. 423-50-2802 Capt., USAR
Box 15	Schimberg, James Philip 478-50-5381 SP4., USA]
	[1993-0189] [CILHI 0189-93

Box 15	Rawlings, James A. 577-50-1942 US Civilian.] [See also CILHI 0065-89]
	[1993-0208A] [CILHI 0208-3A. REFNO 1530.
Box 15	Fellenz, Charles R. 398-36-4700 CMSgt., USAF]
	[1993-0208BC] [CILHI 0208-93C and partial CILHI 0208-93B. Group Remains 3-94. REFNO 1530.
Box 15	Brown, Earl C. 240-66-6130 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Matthes, Peter R. 272-38-4192 Maj., USAF
Box 15	Balamoti, Michael D. 121-26-4366 Maj., USAF
Box 15	Ganley, Richard O. 001-30-2555 Lt., Col., USAF
Box 15	Wright, Donald L. 214-36-6664 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Grewell, Larry I. 559-60-5093 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Dewispelaere, Rexford J. 110-38-7469 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Fellenz, Charles R. 398-36-4700 CMSgt., USAF]
	[1993-0209] [CILHI 0209-93. Group Remains 5-94. REFNO 1600.
Box 15	Davis, Charlie B., Jr. 257-32-2446 Col., USAF
Box 15	Rowley, Charles S. 042-32-1821 Col., USAF
Box 15	Brooks, William L. 453-48-6870 Col., USAFR
Box 15	Fisher, Donald G. 176-24-1909 Col., USAF
Box 15	Towle, John C. 326-38-4797 Capt., USAFR
Box 15 Box 15	Towle, John C. 326-38-4797 Capt., USAFR Ireland, Robert N. 489-36-8809 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Ireland, Robert N. 489-36-8809 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15 Box 15	Ireland, Robert N. 489-36-8809 CMSgt., USAF Adachi, Thomas Y. 569-66-5481 SMSgt., USAF

	[1993-0246A] [CILHI 0246-93A. (Korea)
Box 15	Seaton, Arthur L. RA-57200941 Cpl., USA]
	[1993-0257] [CILHI 0257-93C
Box 15	Jones, Robert W. SN: AF 6 959 785 M/Sgt. USAF]
	[1993-0266] [CILHI 0266-93D]
Box 15	Aaron, George SN: AO 768 396 Capt., USAFR]
	[1993-0276] [CILHI 0276-93. (Korea)
Box 15	Bullock, Elmer T. SN: AO 1 851 649. USAFR]
	[1993-0284A] [CILHI 0284-93A
Box 15	Darcy, Edward Joseph 007-34-5987 CMSgt., USAF]
	[1993-0284B] [CILHI 0284-93B
Box 15	Williams, James Randall 251-68-7293 CMSgt., USAF]
	[1993-0284C] [CILHI 0284-93C
Box 15	Eckley, Wayne Alvin 541-38-3958 CMSgt., USAF]
	[1993-0284D] [CILHI 0284-93D. REFNO 0954.
Box 15	Williams, James Randall 251-68-7293 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Darcy, Edward Joseph 007-34-5987 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Clapper, Gean Preston 201-24-1407 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Claxton, Charles Peter 352-24-6569 Col., USAFR
Box 15	McCrary, Jack 414-48-8391 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	Fisher, Donald Ellis 541-22-0063 Col. USAFR
Box 15	Eckley, Wayne Alvin 541-38-3958 CMSgt., USAF
Box 15	
	Parker, Frank Claveloux, III 159-32-6175 Maj., USAF

Box 15	VanBuren, Gerald Gordon 302-28-7453 Lt., Col., USAFR
Box 15	Wenaas, Gordon James 502-20-6882 Lt., Col., USAFR]
	[1993-0290] [CILHI 0290-93A
Box 15	Lamp, Arnold W. 295-34-7646 Capt., USAF]
	[CILHI 1993-0343B. Group Remains 8-94. REFNO 1643.
Box 15	Goeglein, John W. 487-32-5324 Maj., USAFR
Box 15	Schaneberg, Leroy C. 328-34-9277 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Jenkins, Paul L. 429-74-2901 MSgt., USAF
Box 15	Bell, Marvin E. 430-72-9694 SSgt., USAF
Box 15	Dean, Michael F. 522-64-3073 SSgt., USAF]
199	4 CILHI Case Files
	[1994-0013] [CILHI0013-94
Box 15	Smith, Richard Dean 510-34-7474 Lt., Col., USAFR]
	[1994-0014AB, 0015, 0016][CILHI-0014-94A, CILHI 0014-94B, CILHI 0015-94, CILHI 0016-94. REFNO 0715.
Box 15	Fitzgerald, Joseph Edward 024-39-0943 SSG., USA
Box 15	Jakovac, John Andrew 378-44-1636 SFC., USA
Box 15	McGar, Brian Kent 557-66-0322 SSG., USA]
	[1994-0021] [CILHI 0021-94A
Box 15	Cogdell, William K. 303-38-9371. Captain, USAF]
	[1994-0023] [CILHI 0023-94. REFNO 0275
Box 15	Holmes, David Hugh 028-28-4039 Lt., Col., USAF]
	[1994-0052] [CILHI 0052-94
Box 15	Rock, Wallace E. SR: 0 816159 2nd Lt., USAAC]
	[1994-0053] [CILHI 0053-94. (WWII The Netherlands).

Page 39 of 127

Box 15	Utrecht, Willis A. SR: 0 449 622 2nd Lt., USA]
	[1994-0055] [CILHI 0055-94A and CILHI 0055-94B. Group Remains 10-94. REFNO 1482.
Box 15	Davis, Daniel Richard, Jr. 230-54-4271 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Heng, Bown Laotian National]
	[1994-0059] [CILHI 0059-94
Box 15	Bourg, Archie Theo, Jr. AF 18485513 A2C., USAF]
	[1994-0060][CILHI 0060-94. (WWII South Pacific).
Box 15	Bennett, Wayland E. SN: 0-20609. 2Lt. USMCR]
	[1994-0069] [CILHI 0069-94A, CILHI 0069-94B, CILHI 0069-94C. REFNO 0758
Box 15	Blankenship, Charles Herman 578-48-6979 Capt., USAF
Box 15	Jones, George Emerson 334-34-8820 1st Lt., USAFR
Box 15	McLaughlin, Olen B. MSgt.]
	[1994-0080] [CILHI 0080-94
Box 15	Rex, Robert A. 529-50-8881 Capt., USAFR]
	[1994-0083] [CILHI 0083-94. REFNO 1432
Box 15	East, James Boyd, Jr. 442-36-4003 Maj., USAF]
	[1994-0084] [CILHI 0084-94
Box 15	Hessom, Robert C. 561-54-3208 CDR., USN]
	[1994-0090] [CILHI 0090-94A, CILHI 0090-94B, CILHI 0090-94C, CILHI 0090-94D. REFNO 1817.
Box 15	Alley, James Harold 263-84-4820 Sgt., USAF
Box 15	Avery, Allen Jones 019-32-4340 TSgt., USAF
Box 15	Call, John Henry, III 216-50-5652 Capt., USAFR
Box 15	Chapman, Peter Hayden, II 295-34-7596 Capt., USAF

Box 15	Pearson, William Roy 003-38-7424 Sgt., USAF
Box 15	Prater, Roy Dewitt 410-52-4393 TSgt., USAF]
	[1994-098] [CILHI 0098-94A, CILHI 0098-94B, CILHI 0098-94C. REFNO 1831.
Box 15	Amos, Thomas Hugh 455-38-0196 Major, USAF
Box 15	Burnham, Mason Irwin 542-42-0279 Capt., USAFR]
	[1994-0109] [CILHI 0109-94. (WWII Pacific).
Box 15	Hulbert, Howard W. 0-431440 1st Lt., USMC]
	[1994-0111][CILHI 0111-94. (WWII Pacific).
Box 15	Starmann, John W. 0-681731 2nd Lt., USAAF]
	[1994-0113] [CILHI 0113-1994
Box 15	Williams, Robert C. 329-22-3317 Major USAF]
	[1994-0123AB] [CILHI 0123-94A and CILHI 0123-94B. Group Remains 7-95. REFNO 1771.
Box 15	Ivan, Andrew 146-36-0091 Maj., USAFR
Box 15	Cornwell, Leroy Jason 227-56-7611 Capt., USAFR]
	[1994-0128A] [CILHI 0128-94A. (Korea)
Box 15	Washington, John Morrise RA-38164421 Pfc., USA]
	[1994-0141] [CILHI 0141-94. (Cold War)
Box 15	Dunham, John Robertson SN: 20173A Capt., USAF]
	[CILHI 1994-149-G-01, 1994-149-I-01. REFNO 1077.
Box 15	Lopez, Robert 572-26-5466 LTC., USAR
Box 15	Seward, William Henry 255-54-2158 Major, USMC]
	[1994-0152] [CILHI 0152-94
Box 15	Burns, Frederick John 104-40-7428 Sgt., USMC]

	[1994-0161A, 1994-0124] [CILHI 0161-94A (CILHI 0124-94). REFNO 1985.
Box 15	Ackley, James Howard 171-18-9930 U.S. Civilian
Box 15	Driver, Clarence Nesbit 555-22-5457 U.S. Civilian]
	[1994-0162] [CILHI 0162-94. REFNO 2061
Box 15	Pirkle, Lowell Zinn 521-38-5674 US Civilian
Box 15	Unknown Laotian National.]
	[1994-0166] [CILHI 0166-94A, CILHI 0166-94B, CILHI 0166-94C. Group Remains 3-95. REFNO 1910.
Box 15	Pitzen, John Russell 482-34-8880 Capt., USN
Box 15	Pender, Orland James, Jr. 260-66-3010 LCDR., USN]
	[1994-0168] [CILHI 0168-94. Group Remains 8-95. REFNO 1461.
Box 15	Condit, William Howard, Jr. 280-30-5387 Maj., USAFR
Box 15	Reed, Terry Michael 019-34-8584 1st Lt., USAFR
Box 15	Kearby, Jean Arthur 487-16-2987 Lt. Col., USAF
Box 15	Brunner, Gary Edward 396-42-0406 Capt., USAF
Box 15	McDonald, Billy Wallace 462-52-0624 SSgt., USAF]
	[1994-169] [CILHI 1994-169-G-01 and I-01. REFNO 1297.
Box 15	Mann, James Edward 046-26-8167 Capt., USAR
Box 15	Smith, Roger Lee 275-46-2656 SP4., USA]
	1995 CILHI Case Files
	[1995-0003] [CILHI 0003-95A, CILHI 0003-95B, CILHI 0003-95C. REFNO 1534.
Box 15	Clark, John Calvin, II 466-70-3533 Maj., USAFR
Box 15	Harrold, Patrick Kendal 511-44-7660 Capt., USAFR]
	[1995-0006] [CILHI 0006-95

Box 15	Appleby, Ivan Dale 522-34-7605 Col., USAF]
	[CILHI 1995-007-G-01, 1995-007-I-01, 1995-007-I-02, 1995-007-I-03, 1995-007-I-04. REFNO 1306.
Box 15	Deitsch, Charles Edward 115-09-2652 CW4., USA
Box 15	Knight, Henry Clay 573-56-5696 CW2., USAR
Box 15	Stanton, Ronald (NMI) 269-46-7264 SFC., USA
Box 15	Bridges, Jerry Glen 414-76-3346 SSG., USA
Box 15	Meldahl, Charles Howard 533-50-5753 SSG., USA]
	[1995-0015A] [CILHI 0015-95A. REFNO 1666
Box 15	Chestnut, Joseph Lyons 447-32-4658 Col., USAF]
	[1995-0016] [CILHI 0016-95A. REFNO 1576.
Box 15	Hudgens, Edward Monroe 448-30-2968 Maj., USAFR]
	[1995-0020] [CILHI 0020-95A, CILHI 0020-95B, CILHI 0020-95C. REFNO 0927.
Box 15	Abrams, Lewis Herbert 150-22-2864 Col., USMC
Box 15	Holdeman, Robert Eugene 307-30-2541 Maj., USMC]
	[1995-0021A.] [CILHI 0021-95A. REFNO 0911.
Box 15	Emrich, Roger Gene 265-60-4115 LCDR, USN]
	[1995-0023] [CILHI 0023-95 (CILI 0008-95 Consolidated)
Box 15	Offutt, Gary Phelps 487-44-9090 1Lt., USAFR]
	[1995-0024, 1994-0067] [CILHI 0024-95A, CILHI 0024-95B, CILHI 0024-95C. (CILHI 0067-94). REFNO 1628.
Box 15	Huggins, Bobby Gene 424-42-5671 Major, USAF
Box 15	Mather, Alvin Eugene 514-28-1663 Major, USAF]
	[CILHI 1995-028-G-01, 1995-028-I-01, 1995-028-I-02, 1995-028-I-03, 1995-028-I-04. REFNO 1578.

Box 15	O'Donnell, Michael David 387-44-3597 Major, USAR
Box 15	Pool, Jerry Lynn 462-70-8764 Capt., USAR
Box 15	Hosken, John Charles 293-46-3290 CW3., USAR
Box 15	Boroonski, John Arthur 014-34-7082 SFC., USA
Box 15	Harned, Gary Alan 207-38-0219 SFC., USA
Box 15	Becerra, Rudy Morales 460-84-8037 SSG., USA
Box 15	Canoe, Berman (NMN), Jr. 266-92-0675 SSG., USA
Box 15	5 unknown SE Asian (Montagnard) personnel]
	[1995-0031] [CILHI 0031-95B. (WWII Norway).
Box 15	Bakran, Stephen Donald SN 3004955 ARM2c, USN
Box 15	Tucker, Clyde Adair SN 106350 LTJG, USN]
	[1995-0032] [CILHI 0032-95. REFNO 0355
Box 15	Sandner, Robert Louis 261-48-3075 Capt., USAFR]
	[1995-0036A] [CILHI 0036-95A. (WWII UK).
Box 15	Gallion, Frank D. SN T190742 Flt O, USAAF]
	[1995-0038] [CILHI 0038-95. REFNO 1950
Box 15	Shine, Anthony Cameron 100-32-0329 Lt.Col., USAF]
	[1995-042] [CILHI 1995-042-G-01, I-01, and I-02. REFNO 0020.
Box 15	Wadsworth, Dean Amick 456-36-6092 Capt., USAF]
	[1995-0043] CILHI 0043-95. REFNO 0642
Box 15	Clay, William Clifton, III 240-58-0484 Capt., USMC]
	[1995-0045] [CILHI 0045-95. REFNO 0306
Box 16	Robbins, Richard Joseph 282-26-4060 Capt., USAFR]
	[CILHI 1995-046-G-01. REFNO 1670

Box 16	Schiele, Craig Brian 297-38-9146 Capt., USAF
Box 16	Heideman, Thomas Edward 346-26-7331 MSgt., USAF
Box 16	Two unknown Laotian Nationals]
	[1995-0052] [CILHI 0052-95A and CILHI 0052-95B. REFNO 1413.
Box 16	Widdis, James Wesley, Jr. 140-30-4582 Lt. Col., USAF
Box 16	Davis, Robert Charles 239-54-0287 Major, USAF]
	[1995-0058] [CILHI 0058-95A. (WWII Europe).
Box 16	Hadley, Gilbert Bennie 0-661482 1st Lt., USAAC]
	[1995-0059] [CILHI 0059-95. (WWII Europe).
Box 16	Lindsey, James Rex T-000195 F/O, USAAC]
	[1995-0060AB, 1995-0030] [CILHI 0060-95A, CILHI 0060-95B. (CILHI 0030-95). (WWII South America).
Box 16	Kyte, Floyd D., Jr. 0-421208 1st Lt., USAAC
Box 16	Bares, Edward J. 0-670488 2nd Lt., USAAC
Box 16	Pearman, Robert W. T-2104 FltO., USAAC
Box 16	Stevens, Laurel C. T123083 FltO., USAAC
Box 16	Furman, Harry M. 16110338 SSgt., USAAC
Box 16	Leitch, John E. 39557534 SSgt., USAAC
Box 16	McGilvrey, Max G. 38464304 Sgt., USAAC
Box 16	Prasol, Michael J. 31007258 Sgt., USAAC
Box 16	Rocasey, John 39267459 Sgt., USAAC
Box 16	Smith, Herman 35789696 1Sgt, USAAC]
	[1995-0068] [CILHI 0068-95. REFNO 0957
Box 16	Belcher, Glenn Arthur 502-40-4089 Maj., USAFR]
	[1995-0088] [CILHI 0088-95. REFNO 0355

Box 16	Bailey, John Edward 471-34-5353 Major, USAF]
	[1995-0099] [CILHI 0099-95. REFNO 0644
Box 16	Hamilton, John S. 525-42-1999 Col., USAF]
	[CILHI 1995-114-G-01, 1995-114-I-01, 1995-114-I-02, 1995-114-I-03, 1995-114-I-04, 1995-114-I-05, 1995-114-I-06, 1995-114-I-07, 1995-114- I-08, 1995-114-I-09. REFNO 2003. (Koh Tang Island, Cambodia).
Box 16	Vandegeer, Richard 278-44-8037 2ndLt., USARF
Box 16	Gause, Bernard 416-58-0883 HM1., USN
Box 16	Copenhaver, Gregory Scott 215-56-4939 LCpl., USMC
Box 16	Garcia, Andres 585-72-0306 LCpl, USMC
Box 16	Manning, Ronald J. 273-56-4886 HN., USN
Box 16	Blessing, Lynn 179-48-6564 PFC., USMC
Box 16	Boyd, Walter 229-76-1771 PFC., USMC
Box 16	Sandoval, Antonio Ramos 458-96-4809 PFC., USMC
Box 16	Turner, Kelton Rena 496-60-3371 PFC., USMC]
	1996 CILHI Case Files
	[1996-0020] [CILHI 0020-96. REFNO 0125
Box 16	Thomas, Harry Eugene 566-28-0516 CDR., USN]
	[1996-0021BC, 1995-0097] [CILHI 0021-96B, CILHI 0021-96C, (CILHI 0097-95). REFNO 1954.
Box 16	Poole, Charlie Sherman 463-42-0670 CMSgt., USAF
Box 16	Cooper, Richard Walker 212-40-9139 Major, USAFR]
	[1996-022] [CILHI 022-96A and CILHI 0022-96B. REFNO 1848.
Box 16	Harris, Jeffrey Lyndol 585-09-4041 Capt., USAFR
Box 16	Wilkinson, Dennis Edward 267-68-8941 Capt., USAFR]
	[1996-0030] [CILHI 0030-96. REFNO 1379

Box 16	Zukowski, Robert John 322-34-0895 Major, USAFR]
	[1996-0031ABC] [CILHI 0031-96A, CILHI 0031-96B, CILHI 0031-96C. REFNO 1436.
Box 16	Billip, Norman Karl 195-34-8293 Major, USMC
Box 16	Hagan, John Robert 257-66-6152 Major, USMC]
	[CILHI 1996-044-G-01, 1996-044-I-01, 1996-044-I-02.
Box 16	Kier, Larry Gene 507-66-5406 SSG., USA
Box 16	Teran, Refugio Thomas 372-56-4594 SSG., USA]
	[1996-0045] [CILHI 0045-96. REFNO 1927
Box 16	Borah, Daniel Vernor, Jr. 333-38-7776 Lt., USNR]
	[CILHI 1996-049-I-01
Box 16	Plumadore, Kenneth Leo 068-40-9028 LCpl., USMC]
	[1996-0052] [CILHI 0052-96A. REFNO 0498.
Box 16	Wagener, David Raymond 364-38-4044 Capt., USAFR]
	[1996-0053] [CILHI 0053-96
Box 16	Pogue, Walter Wayne 0-753726 2nd Lt., USAAC]
	[1996-0055] [CILHI 0055-96. (Korea)
Box 16	Leboeuf, Lawrence Joseph RA 18349841 Cpl., USA]
	[1996-0059] [CILHI 0059-96A, CILHI 0059-96B, CILHI 0059-96C, CILHI 0059-96E, CILHI 0059-96F. REFNO 1978.
Box 16	Bush, Elbert Wayne 428-90-5723 SFC., USA
Box 16	Deane, William Lawrence 267-44-4537 LTC., USAR
Box 16	Stinson, William Sherril 419-66-0653 SFC., USA
Box 16	Wilson, Mickey Allen 459-82-5796 CW2., USA
Box 16	Lauterio, Manuel Alonzo 570-64-9845 SSG., USA]

	[CILHI 1996-067-I-01, 1996-067-G-01. REFNO 0629.
Box 16	Plowman, James Edwin 538-38-8280 LCDR., USN
Box 16	Ellison, John Cooley 528-30-2225 Capt., USN]
	[1996-0079] [CILHI 0079-96. REFNO 1346
Box 16	Allee, Richard Kenneth 084-26-3264 Col., USAF]
	1997 CILHI Case Files
	[1997-0002] [CILHI 0002-97. REFNO 0277
Box 16	Underwood, Paul Gerard 093-20-0386 Col., USAFR]
	[CILHI 1997-004-G-01, 1997-004-I-01, 1997-004-I-02, 1997-004-I-03 1997-004-I-04, 1997-004-I-05 1997-004-I-06, 1997-004-I-07, 1997-004- I-08, 1997-004-I-09, 1997-004-I-10. (WWII China).
Box 16	Pierpont, George H. 0-802781 1stLt., USAAF
Box 16	Tomenendale, Franklin A. 0-802956 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 16	Deming, Robert L. 0-741781 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 16	Ward, George A. 0-688567 2ndLt., USAAF
Box 16	DeLucia, Anthony W. 6949724 SSgt., USAAF
Box 16	Drager, William A. 32303245 SSgt., USAAF
Box 16	Kearsey, Robert L. 13011330 Sgt., USAAF
Box 16	Kelley, Ellsworth V. 35404515 Sgt., USAAF
Box 16	Buckley, Fred P. 17175674 Pfc., USAAF
Box 16	Netherwood, Vincent J. 12155792 Pvt., USAAF]
	[1997-0011] [CILHI 0011-97. REFNO 1950
Box 16	Shine, Anthony Cameron 100-32-0329 Lt., Col., USAFR]
	[1997-0016] [CILHI 0016-97. REFNO 0788
Box 16	Cherry, Allen Sheldon 376-34-2829 Capt., USAFR]

Instant (CILLH 1031-97A. REFNO 0770.     Box 16   Davis, Donald Vance 245-46-6310 LCDR, USN]     ICILHI 1997-046-1-02. (Korea)   (CILHI 1997-046-1-03. (Korea)     Box 16   Hoey, John Leo 13267327 Pfc., USA]     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF     Box 16   Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF     Box 16   Jarnes, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]     Box 16   Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023642 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USAR     Box 16   May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR     Box 16   Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]     Box 16   Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]     Box 16   Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]     Box 16   Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA] <td< th=""><th></th><th></th></td<>		
ICILHI 1997-046-I-02. (Korea)     Box 16   Hoey, John Leo 13267327 Pfc., USA]     ICILHI 1997-046-I-03. (Korea)   [CILHI 1997-046-I-03. (Korea)     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     I1997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364   [1997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF     Box 16   May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR     Box 16   May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF     Box 16   Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Ca		[1997-0031A] [CILHI 0031-97A. REFNO 0770.
Box 16   Hoey, John Leo 13267327 Pfc., USA]     [CILLH1 1997-046-I-03. (Korea)     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]     Box 16   Ross, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF     Box 16   Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF     Box 16   May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF     Box 16   May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR     Box 16   Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3, USAF     Box 16   Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR     I(1998-096] [CILH1 1998-096-I-01     Box 16   Farrington	Box 16	Davis, Donald Vance 245-46-6310 LCDR, USN]
ICILHI 1997-046-I-03. (Korea)   Box 16 Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]   I997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364   Box 16 Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]   Box 16 Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]   I998 CILHI Case Files [1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]   Box 16 Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAF   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 3459		[CILHI 1997-046-I-02. (Korea)
Box 16 Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]   [1997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364   Box 16 Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]   1998 CILHI Case Files   [1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]   Box 16 Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USAJ   [CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF   Box 16 May David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAF   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR   [EULHI 1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01 [1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ	Box 16	Hoey, John Leo 13267327 Pfc., USA]
[1997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364   Box 16 Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]   1998 CILHI Case Files   [1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]   Box 16 Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]   Box 16 Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[CILHI 1997-046-I-03. (Korea)
Box 16Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]Box 161998 CILHI Case Files[1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]Box 16Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAFBox 16James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]Box 16James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]Box 16Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]Box 16May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USARBox 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Ernandis, Andrew (NMI) 12304137 Sgt., USA]
In the second se		[1997-0061] [CILHI 0061-97 REFNO 1364
[1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]   Box 16 Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]   Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]   Box 16 I1998-012] [CILHI 1998-012-1-0001. (WWII – Germany).   Box 16 Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   Box 16 Vheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Ross, Douglas Alan 557-62-9993 Sgt., USA]
Box 16Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAFBox 16James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]Box 16[1998-012] [CILHI 1998-012-I-0001. (WWII Germany).Box 16Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA][CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.Box 16May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USARBox 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		1998 CILHI Case Files
Box 16 James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]   [1998-012] [CILHI 1998-012-I-0001. (WWII Germany).   Box 16 Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]   [CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   [CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   [1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ   [CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.   Box 16 Barrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ   [CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[1998-010] [CILHI 1998-010-G-001. Group Remains. REFNO 1986]
[1998-012] [CILHI 1998-012-I-0001. (WWII Germany).   Box 16 Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt, USA]   [CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   [I1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01 [1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Martin, Douglas Kent 092-36-0973 Capt., USAF
Box 16Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]Box 16[CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.Box 16May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USARBox 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR][CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJ[CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.Box 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	James, Samuel Larry 411-72-0425 Capt., USAF]
ICILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.   Box 16 May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR   Box 16 Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]   ICILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075 [CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075   Box 16 Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]   ICILHI 1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01 [1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   ICILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea. [Sox 16   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[1998-012] [CILHI 1998-012-I-0001. (WWII Germany).
Box 16May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USARBox 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16[CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USAJBox 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Herbert, Lemuel H. 33023842 Sgt., USA]
Box 16Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]Box 16[CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR][1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA][CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.Box 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[CILHI 1998-030-I-01, 1998-030-I-02, 1998-030-G-01. REFNO 1708.
Image: Constant of the second secon	Box 16	May, David Murray 219-42-3063 Capt., USAR
Box 16Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]Box 16[1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01Box 16Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA][CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.Box 16Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Reid, Jon Eric 526-74-2578 CW3., USAR]
[1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01   Box 16 Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]   [CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.   Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[CILHI 1998-040-I-01. REFNO 0075
Box 16   Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]     [CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.     Box 16   Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Wheeler, James Atlee 527-34-9103 Capt., USAFR]
[CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea. Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA		[1998-096] [CILHI 1998-096-I-01
Box 16 Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA	Box 16	Farrington, George Robert 34595124 Pfc., USA]
		[CILHI 1998-120-I-01, 1998-120-I-02, 1998-120-G-01. Korea.
Box 16 Frescas, Ramon Mendoza 18255466 Cpl., USA]	Box 16	Buchols, Willard Lowell 17173349 SFC., USA
	Box 16	Frescas, Ramon Mendoza 18255466 Cpl., USA]

	[CILHI 1998-126-I-01
Box 16	Early, John W. 15101921 TSgt., USA]
	1999 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 1999-008-I-01. (WW II Italy)
Box 16	Castilloux, Harry 36895836 Pvt., USA]
	[CILHI 1999-015-G-01, 1999-015-I-01, 1999-015-I-02, 1999-015-I-03. REFNO 0720.
Box 16	Hanson, Stephen Paul 562-52-1483 Major, USMC
Box 16	Laney, Billy Ray 416-50-8177 Sgt., USMC
Box 16	Gardner, John Garrett 240-64-7422 Capt., USMCR
Box 16	Bodden, Timothy Roy 338-34-5289 MSgt., USMC
Box 16	Unknown Vietnamese person]
	[CILHI 1999-048-I-02. Korea
Box 16	Clark, Hallie Autmos, Jr. RA17264215 Sgt., USA]
	[CILHI 1999-115-I-01. REFNO 0313
Box 16	Dyczkowski, Robert Raymond 066-24-4764 Col., USAFR]
	2000 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 2000-013-G-01. REFNO 1495
Box 16	Lona, Luther Albert 379-28-5381 Lt. Col., USMC
Box 16	Curran, Patrick Robert 357-34-9943 Major, USMC]
	[CILHI 2000-014-G-01, 2000-014-I-01. REFNO 1703.
Box 16	Fivelson, Barry Frank 342-42-6336 W01., USAR
Box 16	Crear, Willis Calvin 416-66-0347 SP4., USA
Box 16	Crone, Donald Everett 573-76-9472 SP4., USA
Box 16	Powers, John Lynn 518-62-5574 SP4., USA]

	[CILHI 2000-059-I-01, 2000-059-X-01. REFNO 1434.
Box 16	Reardon, Richard John 052-34-9971 LTJG., USN
Box 16	Schafernocker, Michael Edward B716240 A03, USN]
	[CILHI 2000-124-G-01. REFNO 1999
Box 16	Hendrix, Jerry Wayne 509-44-1056 SSgt., USMC
Box 16	Crody, Kenneth Lloyd 304-58-9968 Cpl., USMC]
	CILHI 2000-141-I-01. WWII France
Box 16	Deneen, Jerome C. 36227925 Pfc., USA]
	2001 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 2001-114-I-01. (Korea)
Box 16	Tippery, Donald Edward 17051492 Capt., USA]
	[CILHI 2001-126-I-01, CILHI 2001-127-I-01, CILHI 2001-128-I-01. (WWII Belgium).
Box 16	Kokotovich, Saul 35094839 Pfc., USA
Box 16	Beckwith, Jack C. 37550296 Pfc., USA
Box 16	Read, David A. 35232803 Pfc., USA]
	[CILHI 2001-133-I-01, CILHI 2001-134-I-01, CILHI 2001-135-I-01. (WWII Belgium).
Box 16	Larson, Stanley E. 36676476 Pfc., USA
Box 16	Fidler, Ewing E. 38563531 Pfc., USA
Box 16	Zimmerman, Frederick F. 35616612 Sgt., USA]
	[CILHI 2001-155-G01, 2001-155-I01, 2001-155-I02, 2001-155-I03. (WWII Kamchatka).
Box 17	Whitman, Walter S., Jr. 1066381 Lt., USNR
Box 17	Hanlon, John William, Jr. 145441 LTJG., USNR
Box 17	Fridley, Clarence Crome 3775592 AMM2c, USNR

Box 17	Lewallen, Donald Graham 5636083 AM2c., USNR
Box 17	Parlier, Jack Junior 6693839 AerM2c., USNR
Box 17	Crown, Samuel Leslie, Jr. 6125394 ARM3c., USNR
Box 17	Palko, James Stephen 3292467 AOM3c., USNR]
	[CILHI 2001-174-I-01. REFNO 0897
Box 17	Evert, Lawrence Gerald 520-36-5987 Lt. Col., USAF]
	2002 CILHI Case Files
	[CILHI 2002-125-I-01. (Korea)
Box 17	Kacprzak, Leonard V. 36536073 SSgt., USA]
	[CIL 2002-150-I-02. Korea
Box 17	Sheraden, Carl Edward 36383420 Sgt., USA]
	2004 CILHI Case Files
	[CIL 2004-070-I-01. REFNO 1119
Box 17	Matocha, Donald John 456-72-1728 2ndLt., USMC]
Box 49	CIL 1993-218-I-01,02,03,04 Sept 2012
Box 49	CII 2011-097-I-01
Box 49	CIL 2006-003-I-01 Blanton July 2012
Box 49	CIL 2000-084-I-01 Barksdale April 2012
Box 49	CIL 1994-050=I-01 Moxley March 2012
Box 49	CIL 2001=131-I-01 Pollard Feb 2012
Box 49	CIA 1995-01-I-01 Brown Dec 2011
Box 49	CIL 2010-0460I-01 Bennett Nov 2011
Box 49	CIL Miaskiewicz (For Holland) Oct 2011
Box 49	CII 1993-140-I-01 Broms Sept 2011

Box 49	JPAC General Tom/Radiological Comparisons Sept 2011
Box 49	CIL 2000-0640I-05 Barnes Aug 2011
Box 49	CIL 2011-027-I-01 Henry July 2011
Box 49	CIL 2009-157-I-01 Reitmann May 2011
Box 49	CIL 2009 147-I-01 Palmer May 2011
Box 49	CIL 2009-149-I-01 Clark May 2011
Box 49	CIL 2010-118-01 Bayne March 2011
Box 49	CIL 1992-071-01-04 Stal, Murray, Sured, Coker Jan 2011
Box 49	CIL 1993-250-I-01 Kubic Jan 2011
Box 49	CIL 1993 322-I-01 Belton Jan 2011
Box 49	CIL 2009-158-I-01 Beyer Oct 2010
Box 49	CIL 1995-0250I-01 Elzinga Oct 2010
Box 49	CIL 1993-267-I-01 Saunders Sept 2010
Box 49	CIL 1993-360-I-01 Scott Aug 2010
Box 49	CIL 2007-0530I-02 Arce Aug 2010
Box 49	CIL 1993-128-I-01 Fujimoto May 2010
Box 49	CIL 1988-214 Howes, Crosby, Allen, Graziosi May 2010
Box 49	CIL 1993-115-I-01 Slight April 2010
Box 49	CIL 2008-100-I-01+02 Wann+Magers March 2010
Box 49	CIL 1995-098-G-01 Wright + Wozniak Jan 2010
Box 49	CIL 2008-045-I-01 Perrine Dec 2009
Box 49	CIL 1993-288-I-01 Goodman Nov. 2009
Box 49	CIL 2008-0550I-01 Miller Aug 2009
Box 49	CIL 2007-0820I-01 Konyud Aug 2009

Box 49	JPAC-CIL Deputy Director May 2009
Box 49	CIL 2004-080-I-01-7 Higidon, Linkowski, Laforest, Reeve, Wilson, Arendt, Whitler July 2009
Box 49	CIL 1993-373-I-01 Head May 2009
Box 49	CIL 1993-368-I-01 Finley April 2009
Box 49	CIL 2007-178-I-01 Edgar April 2009
Box 49	CIL 1984-052-G-01, I-01-I07 Feb 2009
Box 49	CIL 2000-131-I-04 Wilson Oct 2008
Box 49	CIL 2000-097-G-01, I-01, I-02, I-03, I-04, I-05 Sept 2008
Box 49	CIL 2001-089-G-I-I1-4 Sept 2008
Box 49	CIL 1998-122-I-01 Obrien April 2008
Box 49	CIL2006-168-I-01 Enoch April 2008
Box 49	CIL 1993-222-I-01 Mauldin Feb 2008
Box 49	JPAC 2008
Box 49	CIL 2006-140-I-01 Nov 2007
Box 49	CIL 1991-086-I-01 Ferrell Sept 2007
Box 49	CIL 2002-170-I-01 Dinerboiler Aug 2007
Box 49	CIL 2004-173-G-I, I-01, I-02 Ayers +Stratton June 2007
Box 49	CIL 2000-097-I-01 Parker May 2007
Box 49	CIL 2005-199-I-02 March 2007
Box 49	CIL 2002-150-I-03 March 2007
Box 49	CIL 2005-134-G-01, I-01, I-02, I-03
Box 49	JPAC 2007
Box 49	CIL 2005-050-G-01, I-01, I-02, Eaton + Getchell Nov. 2006
Box 49	CIL 2003-23-I-01 Danielson Aug 2006

Box 49	CIL 1989-025-I-01 McCubbin June 2006
Box 49	CIL 1993-372-I-01 Mettler May 2006
Box 49	CIL 2005 171-I-01 Masterson March 2006
Box 49	CIL 2005 141-I-01 Ambrose Feb 2006
Box 49	CIL 2005 140-G-01, I-01, I-02 Mcfarland+Batterfield Sept 2006
Box 49	JPAC 2006
Box 49	CIL 2004-100-G-I01-04 Nelson, Kortebein, Treece Nov 2005
Box 49	CIL 2005-082-I-01 Upchurch Nov 2005
Box 49	CIL 2001-188-I-01 Balanon Sept2005
Box 49	CII-2001-176-I-01 Sept 2005
Box 49	CIL 1993-122-I-01 May 2005
Box 49	CIL 2004-096-I-01 March 2005
Box 49	JPAC Lab Visit 2005
Box 49	CIL-JPAC Reviews 2004-2005
Box 49	CIL 2004-06206, 1-1, 1-2 Hanna + Lindewald Sept 2004
Box 49	JPAC Fax Cover Sheet, Fedex, Private Mail
Box 49	JPAC-CIL Lab Visit 2004
Box 49	CILHI 2003
Box 49	CILHI 2003
Box 49	CILHIL 2002
Box 50	CILHI Visit 2001
Box 50	CILHI July 2000
Box 50	CILHI 1987

## 3.3: Public Service

Scope and Contents:	SUBSERIES: PUBLIC SERVICEThis subseries contains his files from the pro bono consulting that he provided to coroners, law enforcement officials and medical examiners in identifying human remains.
Box 17	[Case: FA 45-79. 1979. Coroner Frank Barron, Richland County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: 77-505. 1977. State Law Enforcement Division of S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: F-79-1263-12. 1979. Lt. Dan DeFreese, SLED]
Box 17	[Case: FA 82-36. May 1982. Coroner Frank Barron, Richland County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: 83-1875. March 1983. Coroner Curt Copeland. Beaufort, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: 111-306. 1980. Greenville County Sheriff's Dept.]
Box 17	[Case: FA-121. 1979. Beaufort County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: Michael Steven Akey (1972). 1979. Coroner Roger Pinckney. Beaufort, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: O'Boyle. 1980. Coroner Frank Barron. Richland County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Case: FA - Alice Carolyn Robinson. 1980. Coroner Frank Barron, Richland County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Forensic Analysis Animal Bones. 1977. Caycee, S.C.]
Box 17	[Forensic Analysis Fragmentary Mandible from Brown's Ferry, S.C. 1976]
Box 17	[Forensic Analysis Human Skeleton. 1979. Coroner Frank Barron, Richland County, S.C.]
Box 17	[Forensic Analysis Skeletal Remains. 1976. Coroner B. B. Shumpert. Columbia,S.C.]
Box 17	[Forensic Analysis Skeletal Remains. 1977. State Law Enforcement Division. (Lt. Cate, Ben Thomas]
Box 17	[Forensic Consultation. July 1980. Kenneth Atkinson. Asst District Attorney, Ashland City, TN.]
Box 17	[Site: 38BU68 (Pickney Island, S.C.). 1980. Michael Trinkley, S.C. Highway Dept.]
Box 17	[Site: 38DA62 (Hartsville Bypass). November 1982. Michael Trinkley, SCDHPT]

Box 17	[Site: 38GN2-240 Burial 1. 1976]
Box 17	[Site: Coosaw River. 1980. Coroner Roger Pinckney. Beaufort, S.C.]
Box 17	[Site: Edisto Island. "Edisto Pete" skull. N.d.]
Box 17	[Site: Exchange Building (Charleston, S.C.). 1981. Shirley McGinnis, Assistant Director]
Box 17	[Site: Ft. Sumter and Morris Island. 1974. C.C. Leslie]
Box 17	[Site: WaCoo Cut Island Waterway. 1981. Chief Medical Examiner Joel Sexton, Charleston, S.C.]

## 3.4: Forensic Cases

Scope and Contents:	SUBSERIES: FORENSIC CASESRESTRICTED until 2088. This subseries consists of his case files donated to the archives in 2013. The bulk of these files document his work as a consultant to South Carolina law enforcement officials, medical examiners, coroners, and attorneys. Materials include his notes, correspondence, slides and prints.
Restrictions:	RESTRICTED until 2088
Box 51	Cemetery Laws, South Carolina
Box 51	ABFA Recertification 2009, Annual Report 2008
Box 51	In08-1897 Calhoun Co. Sled Nov, 2008
Box 51	York Co. Sheriff's Office, July 2008
Box 51	Watkins, Greenville Atty May 2008
Box 51	L08-5023 Jasper Co. Sled April 2008
Box 51	Horry County, South Carolina Police Department April 7, 2008
Box 51	Allen Dale, South Carolina June 2007
Box 51	Beaufort, South Carolina Police Department 06-01283 May 2006
Box 51	Jim Adcock New haven, Rhode Island Case May 2006
Box 51	Mesquite, Texas 05/32366 SLED 1/31/2006
Box 51	Richland Co. Public Defender 2006
Box 51	Anderson Country, South Carolina Coroner Aug 2004

Box 51	Oconee County, South Carolina SLED 2004
Box 51	Sumter County, South Carolina County TV Jan 2004
Box 51	KOLB Site 38DA75 Jan 2004
Box 51	Richland County, South Carolina Coroner-Case Inventory 2003
Box 51	Horry County, South Carolina Police Department October 2003
Box 51	Blume, John Horry Co. June 2003
Box 51	Horry County, South Carolina Police Department HCO03030300 May 2003
Box 51	John Bloom Atty Feb 2003
Box 51	Richland County, South Carolina Coroner Dec 2002
Box 51	North Charleston, South Carolina FBI Bone Fragments Oct 2002
Box 51	Lexington County, South Carolina LCSD-0251030/0248668 Animal July 2002
Box 51	SALTZ/BAREFOOT TRAIL November 2002
Box 51	Abbeville County, South Carolina Coroner 1/21/2002
Box 51	Beaufort County, South Carolina Coronre 1/3/2002
Box 51	Calvin Wilson AAFS Waldrip Talk 2002
Box 51	Beaufort County, South Carolina Transfer to COF C
Box 51	Charleston S.C. Medical Examiner List
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Department 01083972 Sept 2001
Box 51	Colleton County S.C. Sheriff's Department 01-4956 Sept 2001
Box 51	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner- Animal June 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296 May 2001
Box 51	Greenville County, S.C. Medical Examiner 01-77296A May 2001
Box 51	Greenville County, S.C. Medical Examiner 01-77296B May 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296C May 2001

Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296D May 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296E May 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296F (Teeth) May 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296G May 2001
Box 51	Greenville S.C., Sheriff's Department GCC-0177296-"Painted" May 2001
Box 51	Newberry County, S.C. SLED L0104183 April 2001
Box 51	Beaufort County, S.C. 2001-03310140 Coroner April 2001
Box 51	York County, S.C. Sheriff Dept. April 2001
Box 51	York County, S.C. Coroner 05391 March 2001
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 01-0250 Feb 2001
Box 51	Natchez, Miss. Wilson, Calvin (Stuck in Chimney) Feb 2001
Box 51	Greenville County, S.C. Medical Examiner A01-40 (ARM ) Feb 2001
Box 51	Hampton County, S.C. Coroner Jan 2001
Box 51	Forensic Case List 1976-2001
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 00-0909 Aug 2000
Box 51	Horry County S.C. Police Department 0027026 June 2000
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Columbia Police Department Animal May 200
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner April 2000
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 00-0125 Fernandez Feb 2000
Box 51	Greenwood County, S.C. Sheriff's Office Jan 2000
Box 51	York County, S.C. Coroner Oxendine, David Jan 2000
Box 51	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner Dec 1999
Box 51	Aiken County, S.C. Coroner 032591 Nov. 1999
Box 51	Habben, Ken Comparisons Nov 1999

Box 51	Spartanburg County, S.C. Coroner Ernest McLucas Oct+Nov 1999
Box 51	Lexington County, S.C. Coroner May 1999
Box 51	SLED L9911902 (Mullins-Animal) Aug 1999
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 99-0403 April 1999
Box 51	Richland County, S.C Forrest Acres Police Animal Feb 1999
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner David Monarch Dec 1998
Box 51	Hall County, Georgia SLED+GBI Nov 1998
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Kevin Myers Nov 1998
Box 51	Richland County. S.C. Coroner CPD-98-34784 OCT 1998
Box 51	SLED ANIMAL Oct 1998
Box 51	Oconee County, S.C. Coroner 98-094 Aug 1998
Box 51	Florence County, S.C. Gaines/Thomas Aug 1998
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner July 1998
Box 51	Florence County, S.C. Coroner 98-05-900 June 1998
Box 51	Spartanburg County, S.C. Coroner April 1998
Box 51	McCarmick, Ralph 1998
Box 51	SLED GBI 98020606 1998
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Nov 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Department 111697-1028A Nov 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Department 111697-1028B Nov 1997
Box 51	Kershaw County, S.C. Coroner 97-03-01372 W. Swain Nov 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 101597 Animal Oct 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 082597 Animal Sept 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Fort Jackson 090897 Aug 1997

Box 51	Fairfield County, S.C. Aug 1997
Box 51	Fredericksburg, Va Police Department June 1997
Box 51	Lexington County, S.C. Coroner 31997 Animal March 1997
Box 51	Charleston County, S.C. Coroner97-000317-B Jan 1997
Box 51	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 82-0073 Jan 1997
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 97-1028 Joseph Barefoot Jan 1997-99
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 81-0119A-0 1996
Box 52	James Island Fire Station Cemetery 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Department. 0314963024 ANIMAL March 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Department 0215966302 1996
Box 52	Fulton County, G.A. Medical Examiner 1996
Box 52	Marion County, S.C. Coroner ANIMAL 1996
Box 52	Charleston County, S.C. Coroner/95-078103B Moses Washington Dec 1996
Box 52	Marion County, S.C. Coroner ANIMAL Dec 1996
Box 52	Kershaw County, S.C. Coroner 93015392 Dec 1996
Box 52	Aiken Grave Looting November 1996
Box 52	Aiken County, S.C. Cemetery Disturbance Nov 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. RCC 52296 & RCC 101796 May & Nov 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 95-0825 Oct 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 960896 Tammy Nix Sept 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 52196 Aug 1996
Box 52	Pascagoula, Miss/Hoff Alabama 96MB80476 June 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff Office 060796-3013 Animal June 1996
Box 52	Richland County S.C. Coroner 81-0119-A-O May 1996

Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Animal May 1996
Box 52	Cherokee County, S.C. Likes Dawn May 1996
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner-Animal Feb1996
Box 52	RCC 12-95 Animal
Box 52	SLED I92-14B51 Chesterfield Co 10/95
Box 52	BSC 91-1707B Donation 10/95
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner/CPD-95-81275 Sws, Monica Nov 1995
Box 52	Calhoun Co. Coroner 9/26/95
Box 52	Florence Co. 38FL211 9/95
Box 52	FA 95-353 Lit. & Forms-Feet
Box 52	FA 95-353(Foot) Beaufort Co. 8/95
Box 52	RSCD 0-828-95-6206 Animal 8/95
Box 52	Children's Foundation Hilton Head "Animal" 8/95
Box 52	Clarendon Co. Sheriff's Department 3BLRDO Manning 5/24/95
Box 52	Calhoun County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. FA 94-581 Dec 1994-March 1995
Box 52	LCC #94-493 12/94
Box 52	RCC 12-12-94 Animal
Box 52	Sled L94-11045 NC 93-403 11/94
Box 52	4C 94-74 11/94
Box 52	CPD 11-18-94
Box 52	RCC 94-1012 David Beaty 10/94
Box 52	SC 94-4378 Lunette Young 10/94
Box 52	SLED L94-12997 Drangeburg 9/10/94
Box 52	RCC 5-9-94

Box 52	RCC 4-23-94
Box 52	HCC 4-6-94
Box 52	RCC 94-0109 Jan+Feb '94
Box 52	ACC 12-7-93 Animal
Box 52	ACC 15B-93 Nov 1993
Box 52	SCC 93-3452 11/93
Box 52	LCC 10/18/93 ANIMAL
Box 52	CME 9/2/93 Sept 93
Box 52	Cox, Autumn Lee Spartanburg 1993
Box 52	Russ, Devon FA 92-705 9/1993
Box 52	Zeigler Photo Comparison 9/93
Box 52	RCC 9/1/93 (Sarrinen) 9/93
Box 52	Jackson Flap August 1993
Box 52	Charleston County, S.C. James Island, Medical Examiner FA-8-17-92 1993
Box 52	RCC 7-16-93 Claudette Young
Box 52	93-LP-32-1492 Parnell Diggs July 1993
Box 52	Jacobs, Angela D. RCC 6-16-1993
Box 52	PLSO 6-30-93 Animal
Box 52	FA 93-38 (Aiken Co.) 5/4/93
Box 52	Aiken Co. Sarah Boyd May 1993
Box 52	SCC A-3-93 Lake
Box 52	ACC 9211-18F Aiken February 1993
Box 52	YCC 1-29-93 York Co.

Box 52	RCSD J-2-92=2039 Golston testify July '92 3/93
Box 52	Houma, LA Alcock, James (Attorney) Dec 1992
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. Animal Nov 1992
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner 9-19-92A+B Sept 1992
Box 52	Richland County, S.C. Coroner July 1992
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Animal July 1992
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. Animal July 1992
Box 53	Lexington County, S.C. Pelion "Jimmy the Cat Hoffa" July 1992
Box 53	Greenwood County, S.C. Coroner Dunkan, Judge FA 90-300 June 1992
Box 53	Anderson County, S.C. Justice, Mel- Grave Desicration June 1992
Box 53	Aiken County, S.C. ACSD 9211836 June 1992
Box 53	RCC 05/27/92 DeWolfee Nov 1992
Box 53	RCC 05-20-92
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner-Animal April 1992
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner April 1992
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner-Animal April 1992
Box 53	SLED Skull Examination April 1992
Box 53	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner BCC-03-09-92 MRCH 1992
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner March 1992
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Periual Rd (Rose, Dwight) March 1992
Box 53	Horry County S.C. Donation-Daniel Bamber FA 92-63 March 1992
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Columbia Police Dept 92-7443 Animal March 1992
Box 53	Pickens County, S.C. L92-3027 Animal Feb 1992
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner Feb 1992

Box 53	RCC 01/11/92 1/92
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner July 1992
Box 53	Kershaw County, S.C. Coroner+Sheriff's Dept. Dec 1991
Box 53	Spartanburg County, S.C. Coroner A-151-90 Dec 1991
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Dec 1991
Box 53	Kershaw County, S.C. Coroner Dec 1991
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Dec 1991
Box 53	Debruin, Jerry Photo Comparisons Oct 1991
Box 53	Fairfield County. S.C. Coroner Sept 1991
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. Animal Aug 1991
Box 53	Clover, S.C. White: Cemetery Disturbance Aug 1991
Box 53	Orangeburg, S.C. Sheriff-Animal Sled L919867 Aug 1991
Box 53	SLED FA-91-431 Aug 1991
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Final Report
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Correspondence & Clippings
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Photos and Slides
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Rathbun News Clippings Drig.
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Fieldnotes & analysis
Box 53	DYS May 1991 Original Field Notebook
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Alpine + Polo Rd. May 1991
Box 53	Colleton County S.C. FA 90-630 March 1991
Box 53	Horry County, S.C. Conway-Bob Muro "Cat Cremation" Feb 1991
Box 53	Sunter County, S.C. Sheriff's Office Jan 1991
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. 110990-0301 Nov. 1990

Box 53	SLED L90-11970 KIA LOGAN? OCT 1990
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner FA90-427 Sept 1990
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Columbia Police Dept. 90-21891 Animal July 1990
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Columbia Police Dept Animal July 1990
Box 53	Fairfield County, S.C. May 1990
Box 53	Hampton County, S.C. Coroner April 1990
Box 53	Beaufort County, S.C. Bank Skeleton March 1990
Box 53	College of Charleston. S.C. March 1990
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's DeptAnimal Feb 1990
Box 53	Horry County, S.C. Coroner-Animal Bone Feb 1990
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. 02-08-90-0208 Feb 1990
Box 53	FA 89-265 Lewis Carter Jan 1990
Box 53	Jasper County, S.C. FA89- 591 Tehran 1989
Box 53	FA 89-321 CME Dec 1989
Box 53	Sumter County, S.C. Historical Dec 1989
Box 53	Spartanburg County, S.C. Coroner (J.Burnett)- "Matthew Arthur Griffin" Dec 1989
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Police Dept. FA-89-489 Nov 1989
Box 53	SLED L89-10337 Animal Oct 1989
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. TAPPS+Greyhound Bus- Animal oct1989
Box 53	Gaffney, S.C. Jm-A09-A89 Animal Sept 1989
Box 53	Aiken County, S.C. Schultz Hill Cemetery 1989
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Medical Examiner FA-89-445 "Kid on Stick" Spet 1989
Box 53	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner Animal-Deer July 1989

Box 53	Hampton County, S.C. Coroner June 1989
Box 53	Charleston County, S.C. Rivers Bridge- Femur June 1989
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Police Dept. CPD-89-10332 Turkey June 1989
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. Deer May 1989
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. 0423893013 April 1989
Box 53	Aiken County, S.C. FA-87-2224 1988-89
Box 53	Beaufort County, S.C. 88-19643 1988
Box 53	Hampton County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. Animal Dec 1988
Box 53	Horry County, S.C. Coroner Dec 1988
Box 53	Beaufort County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept 88-19643 Dec 1988
Box 53	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept 1105 883010 Nov 1988
Box 53	Aiken County, S.C. C8712 Sept 1988
Box 53	Florence County, S.C. Animal Dog June 1988
Box 53	SLED Arson Control Team Case#05038806 May 1988
Box 53	Cherokee County S.C. Sheriff's Dept April 1988
Box 53	Marlboro County, S.C. SLED+Sheriff's Dept. 1988
Box 53	RCC 87-12-27 Animal Bones Dec 1987
Box 53	FA 81-330 Aiken County, S.C. 1987
Box 53	C86 12-25 Aiken County, S.C. 1987
Box 53	BCSD-87-23370 Animal Nov 1987
Box 53	RCS-87 Animal Nov 1987
Box 54	FA 87-511 Oct 1987
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Paul Colvin OCT 1987
Box 54	Florence County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept Aug 1987

Box 54	FA 87-217 Horry County, S.C. May 1987
Box 54	FA 86-6008 1987
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Coroner Corley Herman March 1987
Box 54	DOG Pavilion Project Huger 1986
Box 54	Fort Jackson June 1986
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. #86-3977 March 1986
Box 54	CME #FA 84-502 1986 Charleston, S.C. FA 86-365
Box 54	CME 86-46 Jan 1986
Box 54	James Island, S.C. CME-86-MH 1986
Box 54	Confederate Soldier, VA 1986
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Sheriff Dept. Dog Dec 1985
Box 54	SLED Animal L85-6688 NOV 1985
Box 54	GCC #85-0329
Box 54	F85-1109-12
Box 54	SLED 585-965 July 1985
Box 54	Richland County, S.C./ Coroner Larry D. Washington April 1985
Box 54	Helmick, Debra 1985
Box 54	Calhoun County, S.C. No. 85-003 Jan 1985
Box 54	CME 85-98
Box 54	Kershaw County, S.C. Nov 1984
Box 54	CPD 84-47928 Aug 1984
Box 54	Chester County, S.C. Case 9-1984
Box 54	Colleton County, S.C. FA 84-285/286 July 1984
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Baby Doe FA 84-15 1984

Box 54	Colleton County, S.C. (1978) California Case Donation 1984
Box 54	FA (CCC) 641467 1984
Box 54	Big Apple, Columbia. S.C. Animal Bones 1984
Box 54	Green County, S.C. Wanda Green 1984
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Seaboard Coastline Freight Depot 630 Gervais 1984
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. BCC 83-10-83
Box 54	Ashley Ave. South Carolina 83-1 July 18 1983
Box 54	Ruth Sheard Columbia Confederate Cemetery 1983
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. Sheriff Dept. 83-1975 March 1983
Box 54	FA 83-295
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. FA 83-97 1983
Box 54	CPD 83-1
Box 54	Tybee Island, Georgia 1983
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner Marine Case 1983
Box 54	FA 83-539 1983
Box 54	SC 151 Bypass 38DA62 Oct 1982
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. 38BU-Shark-82 1982
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. FA 82-36
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. Sheriff's Dept. 81-9612 1981
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. Coroner Parris Island 81-152 Dec 1981
Box 54	Skull From Tim Lord Aug 10 1981
Box 54	Charleston County, S.C. Exchange Building March 1981
Box 54	Richland County. S.C. O'Boyle Case Dec 1980
Box 54	Greenville County, S.C. Sheriff Dept. Case-80-111-306 Nov 1980

Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. (29902) Coosaw River Case, Coroner (Rukney)OCT 1980
Box 54	Ashland City, Tenn. Ken Atkinson-Stephanie Johnson-child Abuve July+Aug 1980
Box 54	Alabama Salvage Bones 1980-81
Box 54	James Island, S.C. A+B Thru Sexton Dec-Jan 1980-81
Box 54	Fort Mill/York, S.C. Skull-Crouch, Alfred 1980
Box 54	Beaufort County, S.C. Mike Akey FA 78-121 1979
Box 54	Richland County, S.C. Ann Hertick Case-Bryan Hostpital 1979
Box 54	Publicity 45-79 1979
Box 54	[Untitled]
Box 54	79-45
Box 54	FA79-20
Box 54	FA-79-1263-12
Box 54	FA-45-79 1979
Box 54	Georgia Ash-Skull 1979
Box 54	FA 77-308 1979
Box 54	FA 78-407 1978
Box 54	Lexington County, S.C. Cayce Police Dept 1977
Box 54	FA 78-356
Box 54	Horry County, S.C. FA 78-219 1978
Box 54	CME I-04992 1977
Box 54	FA 77-109
Box 54	FA 77-676
Box 54	SLED FA 77-309 1977

Box 54	FA 77-677 1977
Box 54	Jose, Charlie July 1976
Box 54	"Edisto Pete" (Jacki Carter) 1976
Box 54	FA 76-772
Box 54	FA 75-828 +829 1975
Box 54	FA 75-311 1975
Box 54	FA 74-974 1974
Box 54	FA-74-973 1974
Box 54	FA 73-905 1973

## Series 4: Research Data, 1977-1980

Scope and	This series contains a small portion of Rathbun's data analyses and other information used
Contents:	for his research and publications. Most of his data was deposited at the South Carolina
	Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology, the Field Museum in Chicago, and the Penn
	Museum in Philadelphia.

- Box 18 [Articles by A.B.Chiraellli; Robert Coruccini; Peter de Souza and Philip Houghton]
- Box 18 [Author survey and excepts from various articles. No Date.]
- Box 18 [Bibliographical data on index cards. No Dates.]
- Box 18 [20 Cranial samples from Asia, SE Asia, and the Pacific. No Date.]
- Box 18 [Cranial and Infracranial charts and graphs. No Date.]
- Box 18 [Cranial and Infracranial data forms and notes. No Date.]
- Box 18 [Cranial and Infracranial data. November, December 1977.]
- Box 18 [Hasanlu Non-Metrics. No Date.]
- Box 18 [MMDs: Originals and List of Traits. April 4-7. 1979.]
- Box 18 [MMDs: Tables for the following: Pooled Sex MMDs: Cranial above Diagonal; Infra-Cranial below Diagonal, Cranial MMDs; InfraCranial MMDs: Males above Diagonal; Females Below Diagonal. No Dates.]
- Box 18 [Nippur Teeth Data. Kish, Nippur, Dinkha Tepe. 5/1/1980.]
- Box 18 [Non-Metric Traits. 1974.]
- Box 18 [Notes from AJPA articles. No Date.]

FOLDERS IN OVERSIZE BOX Notes: These 8 folders contain computer listings (14 1/2 x 11 inches generated by statistical programs at USC. Also included are notes and tables hand-written on the backs of computer listings.

Box 18/ Oversize	[Cranial and InfraCranial Traits. 8 Tables, 4 Notes, 1 Chart. No Date.]

Box 18/ Oversize [Cranial Complete -- 11/8/1978; Cranial Females -- 11/8/1978; Cranial Males -- 11/8/1978; InfraCranial Females -- 11/13/1978; InfraCranial Sexes Pooled -- 11/13/1978; Cluster Analysis InfraCranial Males -- 1/3/1979.]

Box 18/ Oversize	[MDScale Run on Cranial Data Complete Sample 10/4/1978; MDScale Run on Cranial Data Males 10/4/1978; MDScale Run on Cranial Data Females 10/4/1978.]
Box 18/ Oversize	[MMDs Cranial 8/25/1978; MMDs Non-Cranial Males 10/10/1978; MMDs Non-Cranial Complete Females 10/11/1978; MMDs InfraCranial Pooled 10/11/1978.]
Box 18/ Oversize	[Nippur at USC 12/8/1977.]
Box 18/ Oversize	[Preliminary Review of Nippur 1/3/1978.]
Box 18/ Oversize	[Sex2 Controlling for Period2 by Site2 12/13/1978.]
Box 18/ Oversize	[20 Sets used for Mean Meas. Div.; Sex Cross Tabs: Post Cranial Traits; Infra Cranial Traits. No Dates.]

## Series 5: Publications, 1963-2001

#### 3 Linear feet

Scope and This series is comprised of Rathbun's monographs. Included are drafts and manuscripts and correspondence with publishers and co-authors. The book he co-edited with Jane Buikstra is a separate subseries, noting its importance in his career. Rathbun was an active officer and participant in professional organizations; his monogoraphs associated with these organizations comprise the second subseries.

#### 5.1: Human Identification: Case Studies in Forensic Anthropology

Scope and SUBSERIES: HUMAN IDENTIFICATION: CASE STUDIES IN FORENSIC Contents: ANTHROPOLOGY is comprised of manuscripts and correspondence for his book, "Human Identification: Case Studies in Forensic Anthropology," which he co-edited with Jane Buikstra.

Box 19	[Bibliography cards and notes, "General Introduction"]
Box 19	[Bibliography cards and notes, "Individual Identification"]
Box 19	[Bibliography cards and notes, "Intros - Circumstances of Death"]
Box 19	[Bibliography cards and notes, "Presenting Evidence"]
Box 19	[Book Reviews]
Box 19	[Contributors - Addresses]
Box 19	[Copy of several chapters]
Box 19	[Correspondence with co-editor, Jane Buikstra on Case Studies, 1982-1983]
Box 19	[Correspondence with co-editor Jane Buikstra, re: Introduction to Section III, "Age, Sex and Race", 1983]
Box 19	[Correspondence with co-editor Jane Buikstra, re: "Introductions", October 7 versions, 1983]
Box 19	[Correspondence with co-editor Jane Buikstra, re: Buikstra's contribution to book, 1981-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with co-editor Jane Buikstra re: Rathbun's contribution to book, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributors J. Lawrence Angel and Peggy C. Caldwell, 1981-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor William Bass, 1981-1984]

Box 19	[Correspondence with contributors Sheilagh T. Brooks and Richard H. Brooks, 1981-1983]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Michael Charney, 1981-1982]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Della Collins Cook, 1981, 1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Michael Finnegan, 1981-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor George Gill, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Rodger Heglar, 1982]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor J. Michael Hoffman, 1981-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Ellis R. Kerley, 1980]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor William Laughlin, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributors Lowell J. Levine, Homer R. Campbell and Stanley Rhine, 1981-1983]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Paul M. Lin, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributors James L. Luke and Clyde C. Snow, 1981-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor William R. Maples, 1981-1982]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Dan Morse, 1980-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Anthony Perzigian, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor J. Stanley Rhine, "Facial Reproduction in Court", 1981, 1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor J. Stanley Rhine, "Forensic Anthropology in New Mexico", 1982]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Norman J. Sauer, 1981]
Box 19	[Correspondence regarding contributor Sir Sydney Smith (d.1969), 1982]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributors Clyde C. Snow and Theodore A. Reyman regarding Elmer J. McCurdy, 1982-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor Richard G. Snyder, 1982-1984]
Box 19	[Correspondence with contributor T. Dale Stewart, 1982]

Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Judy Suchey, 1981-1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Robert Sundick, 1981-1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Douglas H. Ubelaker, 1982-1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Charles P. Warren and several manuscripts/ articles (1975, 1977, 1978, 1980) by Dr. Warren]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Charles P. Warren, 1981-1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Curtis W. Wienker, 1980-1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with contributor Michael Wilson, 1980-1981]
Box 20	[Correspondence with publisher, William H. Bried, 1984]
Box 20	[Correspondence with publisher, Editor Susan Meister, Charles C. Thomas, Publisher. 1983-1985]
Box 20	[Correspondence with publisher, Payne E. L. Thomas, Charles C. Thomas, Publisher. 1980-1985]
Box 20	[Correspondence with potential contributors, 1980-1981]
Box 20	[Manuscript copy of Human Id:, xvii, 410pp] [2 folders]
Box 20	[Nag Letters, 1980]
Box 20	[Nag Letters, 1981]
Box 20	[Notes, 1980 and n.d.]
Box 20	[Progress Files, 1982]
Box 20	[Proof Copy] (?)
Box 20	[Proof Reactions, 1983]
Box 20	[Proposal Letter and Questionnaire to Potential Contributors, 1980]
Box 20	[Royalties and Contract]

### 5.2: Publications and Professional Presentations

Scope and SUBSERIES: PUBLICATIONS AND PROFESSIONAL PRESENTATIONS contains Rathbun's publications, meetings and symposia papers, and his professional presentations given at meetings or published in the journals associated with the meetings. The subjects

are his work from the Middle East, South Carolina Bioarchaeology, and forensic activities. Folders in this subseries are organized by the title of the paper. Abbreviations used are: : AAA: American Anthropological Association AAFS: American Academy of Forensic Sciences ABFA: American Board of Forensic Anthropology AAFS/JOFS: Journal of Forensic Sciences AAPA: American Association of Physical Anthropologists AAPA-AJPA: American Journal of Physical Anthropology AFIP: Armed Forces Institute of Pathology AIA: Archaeological Institute of America MSB: Mountain, Swamp, Beach - Regional Meeting of Practicing Forensic Anthropologists SEAC: Southeastern Archaeological Conference Box 21 ["The Analysis of Physical Characteristics and Application to Proto-Historical and Historical Problems: Hasanlu, Iran" - 1973] Southern Anthropological Society] Box 21 ["The Analysis of Physical Characteristics and Application to Proto-Historical and Historical Problems: Hasanlu, Iran". 1975. Anthropologie xiii/1,2. 1975] Box 21 ["Archaeological Evidence for Subsistence on Coastal Plantations." Elizabeth J. Reitz, Tyson Gibbs, Ted A. Rathbun. Archaeology of Slavery and Plantation Life. 1985. Academic Press, Inc] Box 21 ["Bone and Soil Mineral Analysis, Diagenesis, Gender, and Age of 19th Century South Carolina Slaves." 1990. T. A. Rathbun and T. A. Crist. AAPA1 Box 21 ["Burial Practices of the Protohistoric Arikara." William M. Bass and Ted A. Rathbun. Plains Conference - 1963] Box 21 ["Chemical Approaches to Dietary Representation," 1997. Chapter in The Cambridge World History of Food. Edited by Ken Kiple. Cambridge University Press. Includes correspondence and contract, 1989-2000. Also referenced as The Cambridge Food and Nutrition Project.] Box 21 ["Cultural Development at Hasanlu, Iran" MESA - Middle East Studies Association. 1974] Box 21 ["Demographic and Morphologic Features of Metal Age Populations in Southwest Asia". August 1976. Mexico, D. F., International Congress of Human Sciences in Asia and North Africa] Box 21 ["Demography and Population Affinities of Metal Age Southwest Asian Populations" November 1978. SEAC]

Box 21	["Disease Patterns in a Formative Period in South Carolina Coastal Population." SEAC 1978. Ted A. Rathbun, Jim Sexton, James Michie. Daw's Island. Working Papers.]
Box 21	["Disease Patterns in a Formative Period in South Carolina Coastal Population." SEAC 1978. Ted A. Rathbun, Jim, Sexton, James Michie. Daw's Island.]
Box 21	["Disease Patterns in a Formative Period in South Carolina Coastal Population." Ted A. Rathbun, Jim Sexton, James Michie. Published in The Skeletal Biology Of Aboriginal Populations in the Southeastern United States. Miscellaneous Paper No 5. Winter 1980. Tennessee Anthropological Association]
Box 21	["The Enigma of Ancient Cranial Trepanation". Arthur C. Aufderheide. 1985; "Preserved Human Remains from the Southern Region of the North American Continent: Report of Autopsy Findings." 1985. Arthur C. Aufderheide et al. Lead analysis of bones from Nippur, Iraq and Daw's Island, South Carolina.]
Box 21	["Ethnic Differences in the Apportionment of Tooth Sizes." Correspondence with Editors, Marc Kelley and Clark Larsen, and with co-author Edward F. Harris. 1988. Advances in Dental Anthropology (Book Chapter)]
Box 21	["Ethnic Differences in the Apportionment of Tooth Sizes." 1988-1989. Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. Advances in Dental Anthropology (Book Chapter)]
Box 21	["Ethnic Differences in the Apportionment of Tooth Sizes." January 1990. Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. Advances in Dental Anthropology (Book Chapter)]
Box 21	["Ethnic Differences in the Apportionment of Tooth Sizes." 1991. Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. Advances in Dental Anthropology (Book Chapter)]
Box 22	["Excavations at Nippur Twelfth Season." The Oriental Institute. 1978. By McGuire Gibson, Judith A. Franke, Miguel Civil, Michael Bates, Joachim Boessneck, Karl W. Butzer. and Ted A. Rathbun and Elizabeth Frick Mallin. Included correspondence (1977) and Nippur Measurements.]
Box 22	["Facial Reproductions & Recognition". February 1981. AAFS]
Box 22	["Folly Island: An African American Union Troop Cemetery in South Carolina," Chapter in In Rememberance: Archaeology and Death. Ted A. Rathbun and Steven D. Smith. 1994-1996. Includes correspondence and contract. Greenwood Publishing Group]
Box 22	["Forensic Implications of Historical Cemeteries". 1990. AAFS]
Box 22	["Forensic Physical Anthropology and the Undergraduate". 1980. AAFS.
Box 22	["Harris Lines and Dentition in Metal Age Iran". AAPA meeting in 1981.]

Box 22	["Heads or Tails? Gender and Age Indicators of the Cranial and Infracranial Skeleton". 1988. AAFS]
Box 22	["Health and Disease at a South Carolina Plantation: 1840-1870" - no date. AAPA-AJPA]
Box 22	["Health and Disease at a South Carolina Plantation: 1840-1870" - 1986. AAPA-AJPA]
Box 22	["Health and Disease in South Carolina Skeletal Samples: Black, Red and White". 1985. SEAC]
Box 22	["Health and Disease Patterns from the Paleolithic through the Middle Ages in SW Asia". International Symposium: Physical Anthropology and Prehistoric Archaeology Rome, 1987]
Box 22	["The Health of Slaves and Free Blacks in the East," 2001. Ted A. Rathbun and Richard H. Steckel. Chapter in The Backbone of History: Health and Nutrition in the Western Hemisphere. Cambridge University Press. Includes correspondence and contract.
Box 22	["Human Remains as an Archeological Resource". South Carolina Antiquities - Journal of the Archaeological Society of South Carolina Volume 13, Numbers 1&2. 1981.]
Box 22	["Human Remains from 38BU19". Callawassie Island (S. C.). 1982 University of South Carolina (Contract?)]
Box 22	["Human Remains Recovered from a Shark's Stomach in South Carolina". T. A. Rathbun and B. C. Rathbun. 1982-1983. AAFS]
Box 22	["Human Remains Recovered from a Shark's Stomach in South Carolina". 1982. Includes slides. AAFS/JOFS]
Box 23	["Human Remains Recovered from a Shark's Stomach in South Carolina." Journal of Forensic Sciences Volume 29, Number 1, January 1984.]
Box 23	["Human Remains Recovered from a Shark's Stomach in South Carolina". T. A. Rathbun and Babette C. Rathbun. Chapter in Forensic Taphonomy: The Postmortem fate of Human Remains by W.D. Haglund and M. H. Sorg. 1996. Includes correspondence and contract 1994-1996. CRC Press.]
Box 23	["Joanna and the Shark in South Carolina". Ted A. Rathbun and Babette Rathbun. No date]
Box 23	["Kish Demography and Population Dynamics." Journal of Oriental Studies. 1979.]
Box 23	["Metal Age Populations of the Mesopotamian Valley and the Iranian Plateau". April 1976. AAPA

Box 23	["Metric and Discrete Trait Variation Among Southwest Asian Populations" April 1979. AAPA]
Box 23	["Metric and Discrete Trait Variation among Southwest Asian Populations." SAP (Spectra of Anthropological Progress) India 1983]
Box 23	["Middle Ear Disease in a Prehistoric Iranian Population." Bulletin of the New York Academy of Medicine Volume 53, Number 10. 1977-1978., Ted A. Rathbun & R. Mallin. Includes X-rays.]
Box 23	["Morphological Affinities and Demography of Metal Age Southwest Asian Populations" 1979. Paleorient]
Box 23	["Morphological Affinities and Demography of Metal Age Southwest Asian Populations". 1981 - 1982. AAPA-AJPA]
Box 23	["Osteological Approaches to Archaeological Problems in SW Asia" - no date and "Patterns of Pathology among Metal Age Iranian and Mesopotamian Populations". 1980. AAPA]
Box 24	["Patterns of Disease in the Daw's Island Population". March 1979. Ted A. Rathbun, Jim Sexton & James L. Michie. Conference on South Carolina Archaeology]
Box 24	["Patterns of Pathology among Metal Age Iranian and Mesopotamian Populations." Symposium 20: "Skeletal Features of Southwest Asian Populations", 1980. AAPA]
Box 24	["Physical and Demographic Features of Two Groups in Northwestern Iran". Ted A. Rathbun and William M. Bass. Anthropologie xv/1 1977.]
Box 24	["Preliminary Archaeological Investigations at the Callawassie Burial Mound (38BU19), Beaufort County, S.C." Mark J. Brooks, Larry Lepionka, Ted A. Rathbun, John Goldsborough, Jr. 1982.]
Box 24	["A Probable Trephination: Not an Enlarged Parietal Foramen!". Bulletin of the New York Academy of Medicine Volume 55, Number 7. 1979. Ted A. Rathbun & Robert Mallin.]
Box 24	["Radiocarbon Date for an Early Human Bone from Edisto Island, South Carolina"; February 1974 Notebook. E. Thomas Hennings, William M. Bass, & Ted A. Rathbun. University of South Carolina - Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology.]
Box 24	["Recent Research in Physical Anthropology on Tappeh Hesār, Iran"; Revised October 1, 1979. AAPA]
Box 24	["A Savannah II Burial from the Lewis Creek Site, McIntosh County, Georgia." Wayne Neighbors and Ted A. Rathbun. South Carolina Antiquities - Journal of the Archaeological Society of South Carolina Volume 12, Number 2. 1980.]

Box 24 ["A Second Burial from Daw's Island Shell Midden, [38BU9], Beaufort S.C." James L. Michie. 1974. South Carolina Antiquities, Volume VI, N 1.]	
Box 24 ["Sex Determination by Discriminant Function Analysis of the Petrous of the Temporal Bone." Journal of Forensic Sciences. Volume 41, Nun September 1996. Ted A. Rathbun and Jonathan K. Kalmey]	
Box 24 ["Skeletal Pathology from the Paleolithic through the Metal Ages in Ira and Iraq". (Chapter 6). Paleopathology at the Origins of Agriculture. 19 Academic Press, Inc.]	
Box 24 ["Skeletal Populations from Kish, Mesopotamia" - April 12, 1974. AAPA November 1974, AJPA]	۹.
Box 24 ["Skulls and Faces: Clay, Pencils, and Photo Superimposition". Februa 1986. AAFS]	ary
Box 24 ["Skulls and Faces - Video Superimposition". 1990. AIA ]	
Box 24 ["Small Tooth Size in a 19th Century South Carolina Slave Series". 19 Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. AAPA-AJPA]	87.
Box 24 ["Small Tooth Size in a 19th Century South Carolina Slave Series". 19 Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. AAPA-AJPA]	88.
Box 24 ["Small Tooth Size in a 19th Century South Carolina Slave Series". 19 Edward F. Harris & Ted A. Rathbun. AAPA-AJPA]	89.
Box 24 ["Social Structure and Sex in Iran." 1973. Southern Anthropological So	ociety]
Box 24 ["South Carolina Human Remains as an Archaeological Resource: An Update". 1988 SCIAA - South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology]	
Box 24 ["Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1 1738-1756." (38CH434 Belleview Plantation). Ted A. Rathbun and Jar Scurry. 1983. AAPA]	• •
Box 25 ["Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1738-1756." Ted A. Rathbun and James D. Scurry. Notes and Present copy for AAPA meeting. 1983. AJPA, February 1983] [38CH434 Bellev Plantation]	
Box 25 ["Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1738-1756." Ted Rathbun and James D. Scurry. 1983. Edited Reading and correspondence with Ann Marie Mires (LSU). AAPA.]	ј Сору
Box 25 [38CH434 Belleview Plantation]	

Box 25	["Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1738-1756." Ted Rathbun and James D. Scurry. 1986-1989. Correspondence with Mary L. Powell for University of Alabama Press. Published as chapter in book What Mean these Bones? Studies in Southeastern Archaeology. 1989.]
Box 25	["Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1738-1756." Ted A. Rathbun and James D. Scurry. Final Manuscript and Correspondence with Debra L. Martin. University of Massachusetts Press. Published as a chapter in book Skeletal Analysis and the Effects of Social and Political Changes on Health. 1983.] [38CH434 Belleview Plantation]
Box 25	["A Study of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Hasanlu, Iran," Ted. A. Rathbun. 1972. Edited by Henry Field. Published by Field Research Projects. [vii, 180pp]]
Box 25	["A Study of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Kish, Iraq," Ted A. Rathbun. 1975. Published by Field Research Projects. [vii, 412pp]]
Box 25	["A Study of the Physical Characteristics of the Ancient Inhabitants of Kish, Iraq." Oxford University Press, 1978; Journal of American Oriental Society, no date]
Box 25	["Trace Elements in 19th Century Southeast Populations". 1988. Paleopathy Association]
Box 25	["Trauma at a Late Archaic S.C. Coastal Site: 38BU9, 114.", Daw's Island. SEAC 1993. Includes slides, foils, and student papers.]
Box 25	["Trauma at a Late Archaic S.C. Coastal Site: 38BU9." Daw's Island. SEAC 1993. Administrative Information and Proposal for presentation.]
Box 25	["A Trephined Skull from Iran" Robert Mallin and Ted A. Rathbun. Bulletin of the New York Academy of Medicine Volume 52. Number 7. 1976]

## Series 6: Grants, 1977-1991

Scope and This series contains Rathbun's grant applications and reports he submitted to the grant committees.

#### 6.1: USC Grants

Box 26	[Contract and Grant Accounting Report. 8/5/1990] [Oversize Box]
Box 26	["Forensic Facial Reproductions". Research and Productive Scholarship Committee. 1981-1983]
Box 26	["Morphology, Demography, and Pathology in SW Asia." 1977. Research proposals to four organizations: USC Committee on Faculty Research and Productive Scholarship; American Philosophical Society; Wenner-Gren Foundation; American Council of Learned Societies.]
Box 26	["Osteological Indicators of Health and Disease in the 19th Century." 1985-1989]
Box 26	["The Physical Anthropology of Dinkha Tepe, Iran" - 1972. University of South Carolina Internal Grants]
Box 26	["Physical Anthropology of 19th Century South Carolinians." 1984, 1985, 1989. Research and Productive Scholarship Committee.]
	SCIAA (South Carolina Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology) Human Remains Collection. (3 folders).
Box 26	["Curation of the SCIAA Human Skeletal Collection" NSF (National Science Foundation) Grant , 1986-1987. Catherine Cockshutt Smith and Ted Allan Rathbun.]
Box 26	[NAGPRA Inventory. November 15, 1995, compiled by Sharon Pekrul.]
Box 26	["Security Assessment of SCIAA's Human Skeletal Material", and "Final Report of Human Skeletal Material Inventory". 1986]
Box 26	["Soldiers and Slaves: 19th Century American Biohistory." USC Carolina Venture Fund Awarded 1990; Completed 1991. Spencer Foundation Grant Not Awarded 1989 National Endowment for the Humanities - 1989]
Box 26	[Unidentified. 1984-1985]

### 6.2: Other Grants

Box 26 ["Afro-American Biohistory in South Carolina, 1840-1870" - 1984 study grant proposal to National Geographic Society -- Not Awarded]

Box 26	["Equipment for Specialized Archaeological and Anthropological Research Facility" NSF (National Science Foundation) Equipment Grant, 1971-1972.]
Box 26	["Health and Biohistory of soldiers, Civilians, and Slaves in 19th Century America". 1987NSF (National Science Foundation) Grant Proposal.]
	Return to Table of Contents

# Series 7: Professional Organizations, 1981-2011

#### 1.5 Linear feet

Scope and Contents:	This series contains organizational, administrative, and agenda information relating to conferences, meetings, symposia, and colloquiums that Rathbun participated in. Correspondence with professional organizations regarding the events is also included. The Black Bio-History Symposium (1985) and Conference on Paleopathology and Socioeconomic Change at the Origins of Agriculture (1982) are placed at the beginning of the series, denoting their importance in Rathbun's career. The remainder of the series is in alphabetical order by the name of the organization. Abbreviations used are: AAAAmerican Anthropological Association AAFSAmerican Academy of Forensic Sciences ABFAAmerican Board of Forensic Anthropology AAFS/JOFSJournal of Forensic Sciences AAPAAmerican Association of Physical Anthropologists AAPAAmerican Journal of Physical Anthropology AFIPArmed Forces Institute of Pathology AIAArchaeological Institute of America MSBMountain, Swamp, BeachRegional Meeting of Practicing Forensic Anthropologists
	SEACSoutheastern Archaeological Conference
	SI-NMNHSmithsonian InstitutionNational Museum of Natural History
	Files donated in 2013 are at the end of the series.
Box 27	[Black Bio-History Symposium. 1985.]
Box 27	[Correspondence with Participants: AAPA and AJPA, 1984-1988]
Box 27	[Black Bio-History Symposium. 1985. AAPA-AJPA. Folder 1 of 2]
Box 27	["Longevity and Childbirth" by Jennifer Olsen Kelley, SI-NMNH]
Box 27	["Stresses of Slavery" by Jennifer Olsen Kelley and J. Lawrence Angel, SI-NMNH]
Box 27	["Life Stresses of the Free Black Community as Represented by First African Baptist Church in Philadelphia, 1824-1841." Jennifer Olsen Kelley and J. Lawrence Angel.]
Box 27	[Black Bio-History Symposium. 1985. AAPA-AJPA. Folder 2 of 2]
Box 27	[Manuscripts and Reviews, 1986-1987, of manuscripts by Jennifer Olsen Kelley and J. Lawrence Angel, SI-NMNH]
Box 27	[Black Bio-History Symposium. AAPA-AJPA. 1985.]

Box 27	["Social Policy, Economic and Demographic Change in Nanticoke-Moor Ethnohistory." Michael L. Blakely, Howard University.]
Box 27	[Black Bio-History Symposium. AAPA-AJPA. 1985.]
Box 27	["Admixture in Black Americans: A Biologically African Caste." Curtis W. Wienker, University of South Florida]
Box 27	Conference on Paleopathology and Socioeconomic Change at the Origins of Agriculture, 1982, Plattsburgh, NY.
Box 27	[Administrative, Organizational, Travel Information, 1980-1982]
Box 27	[Conference Papers and Notes]
Box 27	[Final Rathbun Manuscript]
Box 27	[Manuscripts and Notes, 1980-1982]
Box 27	[Notes and Analyses, n.d.]
Box 27	[AAA, 1989, Washington, D.C.]
Box 27	[AAA, 1994. Atlanta]
Box 27	[AAAS. American Association for the Advancement of Science (AAAS). 1980.]
Box 27	[AAFS, 1980, New Orleans]
Box 27	[AAFS, 1982, Orlando]
Box 27	[AAFS, 1983, Cincinnati (Includes abstract of paper: "Jonah and the Shark in SC")]
Box 27	[AAFS, 1985, Las Vegas]
Box 28	[AAFS and ABFA, 1987, San Diego]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1987-1988, J. Lawrence Angel Award]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1988, Philadelphia]
Box 28	[AAFS and ABFA Expenses, 1989, Las Vegas]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1990, Cincinnati]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1991 Anaheim]

Box 28	[AAFS, 1992, New Orleans]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1993, Boston, "Midline Facial Tissue Thickness of African-American Children"]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1994, San Antonio]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1995, Seattle]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1996, Nashville. Presented "Individual Identification Some Practical Considerations"]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1998, San Francisco]
Box 28	[AAFS, 1999, Orlando]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1979, San Francisco]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1980, Niagara Falls. Symposium 20:"Skeltal Features of SW Asian Populations".]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1981, Detroit. Presented "Harris Lines and Dentition in Metal Age Iran".
Box 28	[AAPA, 1983, Indianapolis (Includes abstract of "Status and Health in Colonial South Carolina: Belleview Plantation 1738-1756.")]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1984, Philadelphia]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1985, Knoxville]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1988, Kansas City]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1989, San Diego]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1990, Miami]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1991, Milwaukee]
Box 28	[AAPA and Human Biology Council, 1992, Tucson and Las Vegas]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1993, Toronto]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1994, Denver. Includes correspondence with Patty Stuart-Macadam re: Symposium "Female Biological Superiority: Fact or Fiction?"]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1996, Raleigh]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1997, St. Louis]

Box 28	[AAPA, 1998, Salt Lake City]
Box 28	[AAPA, 1999, Columbus]
Box 28	[AFIP, 1989, Instructor at AFIP]
Box 28	[AFIP, 1992, Washington, D.C., Paleopathology Course]
Box 28	[Florida State University, "Afro-American Biohistory," 1988, Tallahassee]
Box 28	[Forensic Identification Workshop, 1989, Mexico City]
Box 28	[Forensic Investigation and Human Identification Society (FIHIS), Seminar at UNC-Wilmington featuring Ted Rathbun and Midori Albert, 1996]
Box 28	[IAI (International Association for Identification), 1996, Greensboro]
Box 28	[ICAES (International Congress of Anthropological and Ethnological Sciences), 1983, Vancouver]
Box 29	[Inter-America Congress of Forensic Sciences, 1982, Sacramento]
Box 29	[Mercyhurst College. "Laboratory Methods in Forensic Anthropology," 1996, Erie, Pa.]
Box 29	[MSB, 1987, Gatlinburg]
Box 29	[MSB, 1988, Gatlinburg]
Box 29	[MSB, 1989, Gatlinburg]
Box 29	[MSB, 1991, Knoxville]
Box 29	[MSB, 1992, Lookout Mountain]
Box 29	[MSB, 1993]
Box 29	[MSB, 1994, Lookout Mountain]
Box 29	[MSB, 1995, Lookout Mountain. Includes presentation of "The Vultures are Circling"]
Box 29	[MSB, 1996, Lookout Mountain]
Box 29	[MSB, 1997, Lookout Mountain]
Box 29	[MSB, 1998, Knoxville]

Box 29	[MSB, 1999 Columbia. Includes Correspondence and Meeting Planning Information]
Box 29	[MSB, 1999, Columbia. Expenses
Box 29	[Mt. Pleasant's Archaeological Heritage, Symposium, 1996]
Box 29	[National Association of Medical Examiners (NAME), 1994, "Skeletal Pathology of the 19th Century"]
Box 29	[National Museum of Health and Medicine. Washington, DC. 1994]
Box 29	[North Carolina Archaeological Council (NCAC), 1985. Prehistoric Skeletal Biology]
Box 29	[North Eastern Forensic Anthropology Association, 1994, Washington, DC]
Box 29	[Office of the Medical Investigator. New Mexico. 1995]
Box 29	[OWAN (Old World Archaeology Newsletter), 1981-1982]
Box 29	[Scientific Research Society, Sigma XI. 1982]
Box 29	[Smithsonian Institution, "Disease and Demography in the Americas," 1989. Washington, DC]
Box 29	[Southeastern Archaeological Conference (SEAC), 1998, Greenville]
Box 29	[Southern Anthropological Society (SAS). Baton Rouge, LA., 1996]
Box 29	[The Southern Institute of Forensic Science. 2000. New Orleans]
Box 29	[University of New Mexico, Forensic Anthropology Seminar, 1995, Albuquerque]
Box 29	[University of New Mexico, Forensic Anthropology Seminar, 1996, Albuquerque]
Box 29	[University of South Carolina Anthropology Colloquium, "Culture, Biology and History," 1988. Columbia.]
Box 55	SC Bar Association Talk 2011
Box 55	Yearbook DF PHY Anthro May 2008
Box 55	Forensic Anthropology St. Joe, MD March 2008
Box 55	Mountain, Swamp &Beach (Conference) 2007

Box 55	ABFA Annual recertification 2007
Box 55	Citizens Police Academy Sept-Nov 2005
Box 55	Mercy Hurst Review April 2004
Box 55	Basic Forensic Anthropology St. Joe Talk March 2004
Box 55	MSB Chattanooga 2003
Box 55	NC Center Advancement Teaching Jan 2003
Box 55	Forensic Clues Death Investigation Waldrip Oct 2001
Box 55	Video SuperimpositionWaldrip-New Orleans Oct 2001
Box 55	DEMORT-WTC Oct 2001
Box 55	Abstract AAFS 2002 Waltrip, Rathbun, Symes Aug 2001
Box 55	AAFS Seattle Feb 2001
Box 55	SC Coroners Assoc Talk March 2000
Box 55	Forensic Anthro-Volgarad Law Institute March 2000
Box 55	Naval Training Video Nov 1999
Box 55	Photos of Ted Rathbun
Box 55	National Disaster Medical System

# Series 8: Grants and Publications Reviews, 1974-2000

1.25 Linear feet		
Scope and Contents:	This series contains Rathbun's reviews for various journals, books, and grant committees. The series is organized by the name of the publisher, book, or organization. The review forms for articles in some of the journals (and particularly the Journal of Forensic Sciences) use an abbreviated title and author format. Information has been added to the titles of Rathbun's folders for clarification.	
Box 30	[Requests no other information obtained]	
	Arkansas Archaeological Survey	
Box 30	["Gone to a Better Land: a Biohistory of Rural Black Cemetery", Jerome C. Rose, 1985]	
	American Anthropologist	
Box 30	["Bengali Women," Manisha Roy. 1976. ]	
Box 30	["The Cambridge World History of Human Disease", Kenneth F. Kiple, ed., 1993-1994]	
Box 30	["Effects of Ecological Degradation and Imperial Hegemony on Ancient Mesopotamian Populations," (Health Disease No. Mesopotamia), 1992]	
Box 30	["Personal Identification from Human Remains," Spencer L. Rogers 1987]	
Box 30	["Personal Identification from Human Remains," Spencer L. Rogers. 1988]	
Box 30	["Where Man Lies Buried," Film directed by Kenneth A. R. Kennedy and produced by Margaret Fairlie. 1977]	
	American Antiquity	
Box 30	["A Mimbres Burial with Associated Colon Remains, Grant County, New Mexico," (Mimbres Coprolites etc.), Harry J. Shafer et al., 1987]	
	American Journal of Human Biology	
Box 30	["Bodies of Evidence: Reconstructing History through Skeletal Analysis". Anne L. Grauer. 1996]	
Box 30	["Human Paleopathology: Current Syntheses and Future Options" D. J. Ortner and A. C. Aufderheide, (editors), 1992.]	
	American Journal of Physical Anthropology (AJPA)	

Box 30	["800 year old Human Remains from the tropical Forest of IturiCongo" (Pygmy Foragers), Julio Mercader et al., 2000]
Box 30	["Age Determination of the Male os pubis". J. D. Katz and J. M. Suchey. 1985]
Box 30	["The Age-Sex Structure of the Slave Population in Harris County, Texas: 1850 and 1860," Janis Hutchinson, 1986-1987]
Box 30	["Anthropological Study of Digital and Parietal Hairs of Canadians". Eiki Ikoma. 1984]
Box 30	["Biological Affinities and Adaptations of Bronze Age Bactrians: III. An Initial craniometric Assessment," Brian E. Hemphill, 1997]
Box 30	["The Caribbean Slave: A Biological History," Kenneth Kiple, 1986]
Box 30	["A Case of Prehistoric Kidney Stone Disease Cape Province, South Africa," A.G. Morris and A. L. Rodgers, 1988]
Box 30	["A Congenital Meningocoele in Prehistoric Australia". Steven Webb and Alan G. Thorne. 1985]
Box 30	["Disease and Mortality in the Early Bronze Age People of Bab Edh-Dhra, Jordan. No author cited. 1979]
Box 30	["Doctors and Slaves", Richard B. Sheridan, 1985]
Box 30	["Exploring the Assumption of Uniformitarianism in Osteological Aging Criteria," Robert D. Hoppa, 1999]
Box 30	["Femoral Head Necrosis of a Prehistoric Inhabitant of the Canary Islands," J. Velasco-Vazquez et al., 1996]
Box 30	["Growth of the Hamular Process of the Sphenoid Bone in Humans," Wesley E. Shankland II, 1995]
Box 30	["An Inexpensive Method for Semi-Automatic Histomorphometric Quantification." D.D. Thompson. 1982]
Box 30	["Linear Enamel Hypoplasia and Tuberculosis in Pre-Columbian North America." No author cited. 1980]
Box 30	["Local Traders or Resident Foreigners: Identification of Population Outliers Among Bronze Age Inhabitants of Tepe Hissar," Brian E. Hemphill, 1999]
Box 30	["Microevolution in Prehistoric Andean Populations". F. Rothhammer, J.A. Cocilovo, S. Quevedo. 1983]

Box 30	["Models of Gene Flow in Middle Eastern Skeletal Populations", David J. Finkel, 1978]
Box 30	["Morphological Relationship between Tribals of Peninsular India". Urmila Pringle. 1985]
Box 30	["The Mylohyoik Bridge in Four Samples from India, with Observations of its Suitability as a Genetic Marker." S. Kaw and R.K. Pathak. 1982]
Box 30	["Osteology of a Slave Burial Population from Barbados, West Indies", Corruccini et al., 1982]
Box 30	["Photon-Osteon Analysis of St. Lawrence Island Skeletons," D. D. Thompson and M. Gunness-Hey, 1980]
Box 30	["Population Biology of the Ancient Egyptians." Edited by D. R. Brothwell and B. A. Chiarelli. 1974]
Box 30	["Reducing Measurement Uncertainties", Shaner, 1997]
Box 30	["Skeletal Growth in a Medieval Population from Sudanese Nubia," Hummert and Van Gerven. 1982]
Box 30	["Skeletal Remains of Jews from the Hellenistic, Roman and Byzantine Periods in Israel," Arensburg et al., 1979]
Box 30	["A Slave Skeletal Population from Barbados, W.I.: Implications for the Biological History of American Blacks." Corruccini, Hamdler, Mutaw, Lange. 1982]
Box 30	["Stature Variation in the British American Colonies: French and Indian War Records, 1755-1763," A. Theodore Steegmann, 1987]
Box 30	["Studies of Ancient Northern Africa Crania," Keita, S.O.Y., 1989]
Box 30	["Traverse (Harris) Lines in Irish Archaeological Remains," C. Hughes et al., 1994]
Box 30	["Tissue Contributions to Sex and Race Differences in Tooth Crown Size of Deciduous Molars," Edward F. Harris et al., 1999]
Box 30	["The Tooth Coronal Index: a Biomarker for Age Determination in Human Adults," Andrea G. Drusini et al., 1995]
Box 30	["Trephination in Australian Aborigines," Stephen G. Webb, 1986]
Д	JPA Yearbook of Physical Anthropology

Box 30	["Description and Interpretation of Traumatic Injury in Archaeological Contexts," Judd and Lovell, 1996]
Box 30	["Otitis Media", Daniel, Schmidt, & Ruckeriegal", 1986]
Box 30	["Otitis Media: A Problem for the Physical Anthropologist," Daniel, Schmidt & Ruckeriegal, 1988]
	American Journal of Primatology
Box 30	["The Chemistry of Prehistoric Human Bone", T. Douglas Price, ed., 1991]
	The Cambridge History and Culture of Human Nutrition Project
Box 30	[Phosphorus article, Anderson (?), Kenneth F. Kiple, ed., 1997]
Box 30	[Trace Elements article, Kenneth F. Kiple, ed., 1998]
	CRC Press
Box 30	["Bones, Bullets, Burns, Bludgeons, Blunders", Steven Symes, ed., 1999]
	Current Anthropology
Box 30	["Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease among Libyan Jews in Israel." No author cited. 1978]
Box 30	["Historical Patterns of Migration," William McNeill. 1978]
Box 30	["Identification by Computer Aided Skull-Face Superimposition in Forensic Anthropology," V. P. Delfino et al., 1984]
	Florida Department of State
Box 30	["Burial Traditions of Rural African Americans," (Texas Black Cemetery), Dockall and Powell, 1994]
	Forensic Osteological Analysis, Dr. Scott I Fairgrieve, ed., 1998
Box 30	["The Identification of Human Skeletal Remains: Was He a She or She a He?"
Box 30	"Biker Bones: An Avocational Syndrome?"]
	Forensic Sciences Foundation
Box 30	[Forensic Anthropology article, William Maples, 1994]
	Gordon & Breach, Science Publishers, Inc.

Box 30	[Investigations of Ancient Human Tissue, Mary Kay Sanford, ed., 1992.]
	Harper Collins Publishers
Box 30	[Physical Anthropology and Archeology . Brian Fagan, Alan Mann, Mark Weiss. 1991]
	Harper and Row Publishers
Box 30	[Readings in Physical Anthropology and Archaeology. 1976, 1978]
Box 30	[The Study of Physical Anthropology and Archaeology. 1976]
	Human Biology (Human Biology Council)
Box 30	["An Analysis of Diversity in Glacial Kame and Adena Skeletal Samples." Paul Sciulli, Scott Lozanoff, Kim Schneider. 1983]
Box 30	["The Fabric of Mind," Richard Bergland, 1990]
Box 30	["Intersection of Economics, History, and Human Biology:," (Sioux Stature), Prince, 1994]
Box 30	["Medical Geography," Melinda S. Meade, John W. Florin & Wilbert M. Gesler, 1990]
	Journal of Forensic Sciences (JFS)
Box 30	["The Academic Career William R. Maples," Buikstra, 1998]
Box 30	["The Accuracy of the Phenice Approach to Sex Identification, etc.," (Pherice-Europe), MacLaughlin et al., 1989]
Box 30	["Age Estimation from Features Quantification of 'Chest Plate' X Ray', Barres et al., 1988]
Box 30	["Allocation of Crania," Ross, 1998]
Box 30	["Analysis of Blunt," Tomczak, 1998]
Box 30	["Anthropology Examination," (Branch Davidians), Owsley et al., 1994]
Box 30	["Anthropometric", Dell'Osso, 1999]
Box 30	["Biological and Chemical Hazards," Galloway, 1997]
Box 30	["Building Faces," (Facial Repro), Stephan, 1999]
Box 30	["Cadaveric Fly Activity in Maryland," (Bugs), Introna et al., 1989]

Page 95 of 127

Box 30	["Caliber Estimation from Cranial," Ross, 1995]
Box 30	["A Case with Bear Facts", Murad et al., 1987]
Box 30	["Ceramic Substrate Found," (Cremains Pacemaker), Huxley, 1993]
Box 30	["Change in Hair Pigmentation," Prokopec, 1999]
Box 30	["A Clandestine," Lindemann, 1999]
Box 30	["Coming to Terms with Facial Reproduction," Rhine, 1989]
Box 30	["Comparison of a Bone," (Dental/Auric Age), Telmon et al., 1993]
Box 30	["Computer-Assisted Facial Reconstruction," Ubelaker, 1991]
Box 30	["Corrections for Age in Estimating Older Adults' Stature from Long Bones," (Age/Stature Reduction), Giles, 1990]
Box 30	["Cranial Suture Eccentricities: etc.," (Cranial Sutures Mandible Match), Reichs, 1987-1988] [Reviews of original and revision]
Box 30	["Craniofacial Dysmorphism in Mozart's Skull," Puech et al., 1987]
Box 31	["Decay Rates in a Cold Climate," (Canada), Komar, 1997]
Box 31	["Development of Equipment for the Standardization of Skull Photographs etc.," (Superimposition Stand), Brocklebank et al., 1988]
Box 31	["Disinterment," Hawley et al., 1993]
Box 31	["Disparity Among Training," (Disparity F.A.), Dupras, 1992]
Box 31	["The Dynamics of Gunshot," (GSW), Huxley, 1994]
Box 31	["Education in Forensic Anthropology," Galloway and Simmons, 1996]
Box 31	["The Effects of Various Processing Techniques on Bone Mineral Content and Histology," (BMC and Macuatian (?)), McDonald, 1991]
Box 31	["Estimation of Adult Stature from Fragmentary Tibia," Holland, 1992]
Box 31	["Estimation of Soft Tissue Volume", Guerra, 2001]
Box 31	["Estimation of Stature," (Vertical Stature), Jason and Taylor, 1994]
Box 31	["Evaluation of Cast Methods for Estimating Age from os pubis," Klepinger, 1991]

Box 31	["Evaluation of Seven," Baccino, 1998]
Box 31	["Facial Reconstruction," Vignal, 1999]
Box 31	["Finding Buried Bodies," (GPR), Miller, 1995]
Box 31	["Footprint Identification: etc.," Simmons, 1990]
Box 31	["Forensic Archaeology?" Hoshower, 1995]
Box 31	["Forensic Anthropology and Mass," (Branch Davidians), Ubelaker et al., 1994]
Box 31	["The Forensic Examination of a 19th Century War Trophy", Waldrip et al., 1989]
Box 31	["Forensic Implications of Diagenesis," Vass, 1992]
Box 31	["Forensic Osteological", Rainio, 2000]
Box 31	["Forensic Significance of the Polymorphism," (Hyoid Size), Pallanen and Ubelaker, 1996]
Box 31	["The Greater Sciatic Notch: etc.," (Sciatic Notch Area), Fulginiti, 1988]
Box 31	["Ground Penetrating Radar Spanish Flu," Davis, 1999]
Box 31	["Human Osteology, Key to the Sequence of Events in a Postmortem Shooting," Mann, 1991/1992]
Box 31	["Human Pedal Remains," Rich, 1999]
Box 31	["Hyperostosis" (Thick Skull), Wolf, 2000]
Box 31	["Identification of the Fragments," (Radiology & Field), Owsley, 1993]
Box 31	["Identification of Orthopaedic," (Implants), Ubelaker and Jacobs, 1994]
Box 31	["Identifying Chop Marks," deGruchy, 2001]
Box 31	["Implications of Sex", Snodgrass, 2003]
Box 31	["Increasing the Identification", Rich, 1999]
Box 31	["In vivo facial," Manheim, 1999]
Box 31	["William R. Maples, Forensic," Goza, 1998]

Box 31	["Maxillary Suture Obliteration: etc.," (Mann &Max. (Sut. Oblit.), Mullen (&Gruspier), 1991/1992]
Box 31	["Maxillary Suture Obliteration: Test of the Mann Method," (Age), Gruspier et al., (&Mullen), 1990]
Box 31	["A Method for Estimating," (Weight-Kids; Subadult Age; Kid Age), Sciulli and Pfau, 1993] [Original Review and Revision Review]
Box 31	["A Method for Siding a Detached or Incomplete Human Caput Femoris," (Femur, Side), Mann (&Berryman), 1991]
Box 31	["A Methodology for Near Optimal, Computational Superimposition etc." Nickerson et al., 1990]
Box 31	["A Metric Method for Sex Determination," John Albanese. 2001-2002]
Box 31	["Midsagittal Facial Tissue," Smith, 2001]
Box 31	["New Formulae for Estimating", Ross, 2000]
Box 31	["Osteological Individuality Indicative of Migrant Laboring," Wienker et al., 1987]
Box 31	["Osteometry of the Human," (Ilium-Sex), Camacho, 1992]
Box 31	["Personal Identification through Footprints:" (Sock Prints), Simmons and Hunt, 1996]
Box 31	["Population Specific Identification," Ross, 2003]
Box 31	["Positive ID," Bennett, 1999]
Box 31	["Possible Osteological," (Sacrifice), Adair, 1994]
Box 31	["Post-Cremation Taphonomyu", Warren, 2001]
Box 31	["Probable Torticollis," Klipinger et al., 1995]
Box 31	["Pseudopathology from Physical and Chemical Processes," Katzenberg, 1990]
Box 31	["Race Identification from Palatal Dimensions," Curran et al., 1989]
Box 31	["Radiographic Determination", Warren, 1998]
Box 31	["Radiographic Identification," Adams, 2001]

Box 31	["Radiographic Identification by Mastoid Sinus and Arterial Pattern," Rhine et al., 1989]
Box 31	["The Reconstruction," Ciallella (?), 2002]
Box 31	["The Relationship," Wilkinson, 2002]
Box 31	["Relationship of Pirlform Aperture and Interalar Nasal Widths in Adult Males," (Nasal Breadth-Fac. Repros.), Hoffman et al., 1990]
Box 31	["The Reliability of Skull/," (Superimposition), Austin-Smith and Maples, 1993]
Box 31	["The Remains of Dr. Carl Austin Weiss," Ubelaker, 1995]
Box 31	["The Role of Forensic Anthropology," (Age-Waco), Houck et al., 1995]
Box 31	["Sacralization of a Sixth Lumbar Vertebra, etc.," Lundy, 1987]
Box 31	["Sex Assessment," Purkait, 2001]
Box 31	["Sex Determination of Chinese Femur by Discriminant Function," Wu, 1988]
Box 31	["Sex Determination with the Head of the Radius," Berrizbeltia, 1988]
Box 31	["Sex Differences," Tanaka, 1998]
Box 31	["Sex Estimation from," (Foot-Sex), Robling and Ubelaker, 1996]
Box 31	["Sexing North American Eskimo and Indian Innominate Bones, etc.," Schulter-Ellis et al., 1987]
Box 31	["Sharpe-force Trauma," Walsh-Haney, 1998]
Box 31	["Six Years of Forensic Uruguay," Solla, 1998]
Box 31	["The Skeletal Manifestations," Carson, 1999]
Box 31	["A Taphonomic Profile", Schultz, 2001]
Box 31	["Tattoos in the Postmortem," Bennett, 1998]
Box 31	["A Test of the Auricular Surface Ageing Technique," Murray et al., (Murray, K &T), 1990] [Reviews of original and revision]
Box 31	["A Test of the Phenice Method," Ubelaker, 2000-2001]

Box 31	["Time Since Death and Decomposition of the Human Body: etc.," Mann et al. (&Bass), 1989] [Reviews of original and revision]
Box 31	["Tooth Artifacts and Survival of Bones," (Tooth-Marks), Haglund, Reay, Swindler, 1987]
Box 31	["Triangle Identified at the Upper End", Purkait, 2001]
Box 31	["A Unique Form of," (CILHI), Hoshower, 1996]
Box 31	["Use of Bone Trabeculae to Establish Positive Ident," (X-Ray), (X- Rays-Knees), Mann, 1991-1992] [Reviews of original and revision]
Box 31	["Use of 'Glue Gun' in Forensic Anthropology etc., Stephens et al., 1988]
Box 31	["The Use of Histomorphology to Estimate Age," (Age-Osteons), Stout, 1987]
Box 31	["The Utility of the Auricular," (AS Age), Lovejoy et al., 1991-1992]
Box 31	[Reviews of original and revision]
Box 31	["Variation in Birth Timing," (Neonatal Lines), Skinner &Dupras, 1992]
Box 31	["Verification of Death," (Pins in Toes), Leonetti et al, 1996]
Box 31	["Video Superimposition [Maples 13]," Austin-Smith, 1998]
Box 31	["A Visual Method," Rogers, 1997]
Box 31	["Who's Buried", Willey, 1998]
Box 31	["The Wrong Urn," Kennedy, 1995]
J	ournal of Field Archaeology
Box 31	["The Neoloithic People of Cayönü: Early Farming Village, Southeastern Anatolia," Metin Özbek, 1993]
L	ouisiana Board of Regents
Box 31	[M. Manhein Proposal, 1995]
N	lational Endowment for the Humanities (NEH)
Box 31	["Covert Medical Practices in 19th Century Georgia," (Georgia Medical School), Robert L. Blakely, 1992]

Box 31	["Covert Medical Practices in 19th Century Georgia," Robert L. Blakely, 1995]
Box 31	["History and Geography of Human Disease," Kenneth F. Kiple, 1989]
Box 31	[Tyson, 1994]
	National Geographic Society
Box 31	["Archaeological and Physical Anthropological Investigations at the PhoenicianCemetery, Achziv," Patricia Smith, 1989]
Box 31	["Human Biological History in the Ancient Near East," (?) Donald J. Ortner, 1981]
Box 32	[Newton Cemetery &Barbados, Jerome S. Handler, 1992]
	National Science Foundation (NSF)
Box 32	["Bioarchaeological Investigation of Native Responses to European Colonization of La Florida," Clark S. Larsen (et al.), 1993]
Box 32	["Bioarchaeological and Ethnohistorical Investigation of Plantation Slaves in Barbados," Jerome S. Handler, 1987]
Box 32	["Biocultural Adaptations and Affinities of the Prehistoric Williams' Site Populations: Osteology and Odontology", Paul W. Sciulli, 1979]
Box 32	["Biological Distance and the African American Dentition," Paul W. Sciulli,1999. Dissertation Research.]
Box 32	["Coastal Estuarine Bioculture Adaptation," Dale L. Hutchinson, 1996-1997]
Box 32	["Curating and Conserving Samples from the MU Human Skeletal Collections," Robert A. Benfer (&Stout), 1989]
Box 32	["Development of Knowledge-Based Systems in Anthropology, Identification of Human Skeletal Remains," Robert A. Benfer, 1987]
Box 32	["Diagnosis and Distribution of Treponematosis in Prehistoric Texas Populations," Thomas R. Hester, 1997. Dissertation Research.]
Box 32	["Evolution of Far Eastern H. Erectus." No author; No date]
Box 32	["Farms and Cities, Bones and Graves Ancient Anatolia," (Turkey), Della C. Cook, 1992. Dissertation Research.]

Box 32	["The Interaction among Metrical and Non-Metrical Attributes at oh 2, Kentucky," (Indian Knoll), James P. Fenton, 1991]
Box 32	["An Investigation of the Human Remains of the Khartoum District, Sudan," Dennis P. VanGerven, 1990]
Box 32	["Lead and Mercury Contamination and Poisoning Resulting from the early Fur Trade on The Upper Missouri," Karl J. Reinhard, 1992]
Box 32	["Paleopathology in Human Skeletal Remains from the Bronze/Iron Age, Northeast Thailand," Michael J. Pietrusewsky (&Douglas), 1993]
Box 32	["The Paleoepidemiology of Syphilis," Thomas R. Hestor, 1996]
Box 32	["Postcontact Biocultural Adaptation of Native American Population in Spanish Florida," Clark S. Larsen, 1987]
Box 32	["Postcontact Biocultural Adaptation of Native American Populations on St. Catherines Island, Georgia", Clark S. Larsen, 1984]
Box 32	["Post-Pleistocene Dental Variation in South Asia: An Anthropological Analysis. John Lukacs. 1981]
Box 32	["Prehistoric-Protohistoric Cultural and Population Dynamics," Jerome C. Rose, 1987]
	W. W. Norton &Company Publishers
Box 32	[Textbook proposal in Physical Anthropology and Archaeology. 1978]
	Plains Anthropologist
Box 32	["Brachydactyly in a Prehistoric Texas Skeleton," (Short Toes), Carol J. Loveland and John B. Gregg, 1987]
Box 32	["Dry Bones: Dakota Territory Reflected", John B. Gregg and Pauline S. Gregg, 1989]
	Public Archaeology Review
Box 32	["Who Owns these Bones?," John McCarthy, 1996]
	Random House
Box 32	[The Origin and Nature of Man. 1977]
Box 32	[Physical Anthropology and Archaeology, 3rd edition, Clifford Jolly and Fred Plog, 1984]

	Scientific American Books
Box 32	["Human Diversity", Richard Lewontin, 1984]
	Scott, Foresman &Company Publishers
Box 32	[Textbook proposal in Physical Anthropology and Archaeology. 1975]
	Smithsonian Institution
Box 32	["Human Biological History in the Ancient Near East," Donald J. Ortner, 1981]
	South Carolina The Hunley Commission
Box 32	[Confederate Submarine HL Hunley Conservation Project, 1995]
	Southeastern Archaeology
Box 32	["A Late Archaic Cemetery" Carr, Iscan and Johnson. 1983]
Box 32	["The Weeki Wachee Mound, an Early Contact Period Mortuary Locality in Hernando County, West-Central FL," Dale L. Hutchinson and Jeffrey M. Mitchem, 1955]
	University of Delhi Doctoral Thesis
Box 32	["Determination of Sex from Human Long Bones of Madhya Pradesh, India", Miss Ruma Purkait, 1990]
	University of Georgia Press
Box 32	["The Gullah People and their African Heritage," William S. Pollitzer, 1997]
	University of New Mexico Press
Box 32	["You Won't Get Out of it Alive". Stan Rhine. 1996]
	University of South Carolina The Institute of Archeology and Anthropology
Box 32	["An Osteological Analysis of The Scott's Lake Bluff Population." Jackie Carter and Lee Chickering, 1974.]
	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Box 32	["Cedar Grove Historical Cemetery: A study in "BioHistory,"
	Jerome C. Rose et al. 1983]

Box 32	["The Mt. Gilead Cemetery Study: An Example of Biocultural Analysis from Western Georgia", W. Dean Wood, 1985]
	John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
Box 32	[Proposal for book, Biological Anthropology of the Human Skeleton, Dr. Linda Klepinger. 2000]
Box 32	[Proposal for book, Skeletal Biology of Past Peoples, 2nd Edition, Edited by Anne Katzenberg and Shelley R. Saunders, 1997]

# Series 9: University of South Carolina, 1970-2004, undated

#### 5.8 Linear feet

Scope and Rathbun taught at the University of South Carolina from 1970 to 2000. Contents:

### 9.1: Teaching

Scope and Contents:	This subseries contains lecture notes and syllabi for the classes he taught. The subseries is arranged by the USC Anthropology class number, and is in semester sequence. Teaching files donated in 2013 are at the end of the subseries.
	USC ANTH 101 - Primates, People, Prehistory
Box 33	[Lecture Notes and Topics - 2 Folders]
Box 33	[Fall 1973]
Box 33	[Summer II 1975]
Box 33	[Fall 1975]
Box 33	[Fall 1976]
Box 33	[Spring 1978]
Box 33	[Summer II 1978]
Box 33	[Fall 1978]
Box 33	[Fall 1979]
Box 33	[Summer I 1980]
Box 33	[Fall 1980]
Box 33	[Summer I 1981]
Box 33	[Fall 1981]
Box 33	[Spring 1982] [SCCC232]
Box 33	[Summer I 1982]
Box 34	[Fall 1982]
Box 34	[Summer I 1983]
Box 34	[Fall 1983]

Box 34	[Spring 1985]
Box 34	[Fall 1985]
Box 34	[Summer I 1986]
Box 34	[Fall 1986]
Box 34	[Summer   1989]
Box 34	[Spring 1990]
Box 34	[Fall 1990]
Box 34	[Summer II 1992]
Box 34	[Summer II 1999]
	USC ANTH 102 - Understanding Other Cultures
Box 34	[Summer I 1981 - Includes Lecture Notes/Topics]
	USC ANTH 210 - taught by Professor Kasakoff (?).
Box 34	[ Fall 1985]
	USC ANTH 311 - Ethnology of Southwest Asia
Box 34	[Fall 1975]
Box 34	[Lecture Notes/Topics]
Box 34	[Spring 1973]
Box 34	[Summer   1976]
	USC ANTH 352 -
Box 34	[Spring 1978]
	USC ANTH 361 - Becoming Human/Emergence of Man
Box 35	[Fall 1973]
Box 35	[Spring 1978]
Box 35	[Fall 1985]

Box 35	[Fall 1986]
Box 35	[Lecture Notes/Topics]
Box 35	[Summer I 1973]
Box 35	[Fall 1974]
Box 35	[Spring 1977]
Box 35	[Spring 1980]
Box 35	[Spring 1983]
Box 35	[Spring 1984]
	USC ANTH 365 - Human Osteology & Anthropometry.
Box 35	[Fall 1976]
Box 35	[Fall 1978]
Box 35	[Fall 1979]
Box 35	[Fall 1980]
Box 35	[Fall 1981]
Box 35	[Fall 1982]
Box 35	[Summer I 1983]
Box 35	[Fall 1983]
Box 35	[Spring 1985]
Box 35	[July 1972. "The Cochran Family of North Georgia," By Gervais Cochran and Timothy Lundy.]
Box 35	[Fall 1972]
Box 35	[Spring 1975]
Box 35	[Spring 1976]
Box 35	[Spring 1986]
Box 35	[Spring 1987]

Box 35	[Spring 1988]
Box 35	[Spring 1989] [ANTH 365/561]
Box 35	[Spring 1990] [ANTH 365/561]
Box 35	[Fall 1990] [ANTH 365/561]
	USC ANTH 367 - Basic Forensic Anthropology
Box 36	[Lecture Notes/Topics]
Box 36	[Summer I 1996]
Box 36	[Spring 1998]
Box 36	[Summer I 1998]
Box 36	[Summer I 1999]
Box 36	[Summer I 2000]
	USC ANTH 399. Independent Study
Box 36	[Spring 1995, Summer II 1997, Spring 1998]
	USC ANTH 498-499 - In the Tradition of Anthropology
Box 36	[Spring 1975]
Box 36	[Spring 1976]
Box 36	[Spring 1972]
Box 36	[Spring 1979]
	USC ANTH 501. Problem Solving
Box 36	[Fall 1983]
	USC ANTH 561 - Human Osteology
Box 36	[Fall 1990]
Box 36	[Spring 1989]
Box 36	[Fall 1992]

Box 36	[Fall 1993]
Box 36	[Fall 1994]
Box 36	[Fall 1995]
Box 36	[Fall 1996]
Box 36	[Fall 1997]
Box 36	[Fall 1998]
Box 36	[Spring 2000]
	USC ANTH 563 - Ancient & Modern Man in SW Asia
Box 36	[Lecture Notes/Topics]
Box 36	[Spring 1975]
Box 36	[Spring 1972]
	USC ANTH 565 - Health and Disease in Past - Lecture Notes/Topics
Box 36	["Anemias"]
Box 36	["Anthro. Models"]
Box 36	["Arthritis"]
Box 36	["Congenital"]
Box 36	["Dental"]
Box 37	["Infections"]
Box 37	["Metabolic/Endocrine"]
Box 37	["Systemic Quality of Life"]
Box 37	["Trauma"]
Box 37	['Tumors"]
Box 37	[Paleopathology]

USC ANTH 565 - Health and Disease in Past (Human Paleopathology)

Box 37	[Spring 1990]
Box 37	[Spring 1977]
Box 37	[Spring 1998]
Box 37	[Spring 1981]
Box 37	[Fall 1989]
Box 37	[Fall 1991]
Box 37	[Spring 1993]
Box 37	[Spring 1994]
Box 37	[Spring 1995]
Box 37	[Spring 1996]
Box 37	[Summer I 1997]
Box 37	[Fall 1999, Includes lecture foils]
	USC ANTH 567 - Human Identification in Forensic Anthropology
Box 38	[Summer I 1982]
Box 38 Box 38	[Summer I 1982] [Spring 1985]
Box 38	[Spring 1985]
Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986]
Box 38 Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986] [Spring 1990]
Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986] [Spring 1990] [Spring 1980]
Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986] [Spring 1990] [Spring 1980] [Spring 1983]
Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986] [Spring 1990] [Spring 1980] [Spring 1983] [Spring 1984]
Box 38 Box 38   Box 38 Box 38   Box 38 Box 38   Box 38 Box 38   Box 38 Box 38	[Spring 1985] [Summer I 1986] [Spring 1990] [Spring 1980] [Spring 1983] [Spring 1984] [Spring 1986]

Box 38	[Fall 1993]
Box 38	[Fall 1994]
Box 38	[Fall 1995]
Box 38	[Fall 1996]
Box 38	[Fall 1997]
Box 38	[Spring 2000]
Box 38	[Spring 1981]
Box 38	[Fall 1989]
Box 38	[Fall 1991]
Box 37	[Lecture Notes and Topics - 3 Folders]
Box 38	[Spring 1982]
Box 38	[Fall 1987]
Box 38	[Fall 1988]
Box 38	[Spring 1991]
Box 38	[Summer I 1993]
Box 38	[Summer   1994]
Box 38	[Fall 1999]
	USC ANTH 591 - Skulls and Faces
Box 39	[May 2000]
	USC ANTH 699. Reading and Research
Box 39	[Spring 1998]
	USC ANTH 701 - Physical Anthropology and Archaeology for Teachers
Box 39	[Summer II 1978]
Box 39	[Summer II 1999]

Box 39	[Summer I 1976]
Box 39	[Spring 1976 (?)]
	USC ANTH 722. Field Problems. School
Box 39	[Spring 1997]
	USC ANTH 742. The Press Conference/Interview
Box 39	[Spring 1990]
	USC ANTH 761 - Bioarchaeology Principles
Box 39	[Fall 1998]
Box 39	[Spring 1993]
Box 39	[Spring 1994]
Box 39	[Spring 1995]
Box 39	[Spring 1996]
Box 39	[Spring 1991]
Box 39	[Spring 1997]
	USC ANTH 791. Topic/Arch & Phys Res. Grades RESTRICTED
Box 39	[Fall 1997]
	USC ANTH 799. Masters Thesis. Class Rosters
Box 39	[Spring 1995, Spring 1996, Spring 1997, Spring, 1998]
	USC ANTH 799. Masters Thesis. Grades RESTRICTED
Box 39	[Fall 1997, Spring 1998]
	USC ANTH
Box 39	[Comprehensive Exam Questions. 1991-1993]
Box 39	[Comprehensive Exam Questions. 1999.]
Box 39	[Doctoral Examination. 1994.]

Box 39	[Teaching Activities - Summary by Semester. 1970-1980]
Box 39	[USC Professor Evaluation and Information Survey. Fall 1973]
	USC Coastal Carolina College. Anthropology
Box 39	(On Site Excavation near Galivants Ferry).
Box 39	[Summer 1985]
	USC Coastal Carolina College. Skeletons and Science.
Box 39	[Summer 1984]
Box 39	[USC Mature Students Program. 1982-1983]
Box 39	[KU ANTH 2. Man and Culture. Spring 1970. Includes Lecture Notes/ Topics]
Box 55	Anthro 567 Fall 1997
Box 55	USC Anthro Lab-Remains
Box 55	USC Body Donation
Box 55	Facial Reconstructions- Roy Paschal Folly Island Soldier
Box 56	Sauchey Autopsy Cleaning
Box 56	Rathbun Forensic PPT Slides
Box 56	Forensic Handouts
Box 56	Teaching Notes
Box 56	Forensic Statistics- Ousley, Steve F
Box 56	Anthro-567-Master Forms
Box 56	Sex Morphological- FA Sex
Box 56	Sex PC Stats Forensics Data
Box 56	Subadult Age forms Crest 1991
Box 56	Mongoloid Morphology
Box 56	Age Forms

Box 56	Ancestry Morphology
Box 56	American Black Morphology
Box 56	Causasoid Morphology
Box 56	Human/Non-Human Class 367
Box 56	Hair
Box 56	Forensic- Skeletal Drawings
Box 56	Stewart: Cranial Closure
Box 56	Skull-Face Drawings ASCP 1992
Box 56	Rib Vertebra Autopsy
Box 56	Autopsy Skull Forms
Box 56	Weight Determination
Box 56	Forensic- Inventory, Measurements, Age, Teeth
Box 56	Anthro 367
Box 56	Anthro 367/567 Steps in Forensic Analysis
Box 56	Anthrology, Forensic Science, Forensic Anthropology, Academy 367/567
Box 56	Ancestry +Race
Box 56	Steps in Forensic Analysis
Box 56	Class 367 Skeleton/Skull
Box 56	Forensic Future
Box 56	Forensic Bone Modification
Box 56	Forensic Lab Methods
Box 56	Buried Bone
Box 56	Dental Development- Edwards
Box 56	Weight

Box 56	Positive ID
Box 56	PMI-Postmortem Interval
Box 56	Skulls + Faces
Box 56	Skulls Dimporphism
Box 56	Adult Age: Joints Histology
Box 56	Adult Age: Degenerative- X-ray
Box 56	Subadult - Age
Box 56	Stature
Box 56	Handedness
Box 56	Scene Methods
Box 56	Adult Cranial Age
Box 56	Adult Age- Catagories +Dental
Box 56	Suchey/ brooks Male Pubes
Box 56	Anthro 567- Age File Lab

### 9.2: Anthropology Department Files

Scope and	This subseries is comprised of Rathbun's records of information relating to the
Contents:	USC Department of Anthropology from 1970-2004. During this time the anthropology
	department grew from being combined with the sociology department into an independent
	department within the university with 13 faculty members. Included in this series are
	documents associated with department issues, personnel, finances, and faculty meetings.
	Rathbun served as the Chairman of the Anthropology Department from 1982-1983 and as
	the Undergraduate Director from 1990-1996.

- Box 40 [Committee on Promotions and Tenure. 1982]
- Box 40 [Committee. Review Panel's Annual Reviews. 1982-1983]
- Box 40 [Department Annual Reports: 1977-1978; 1978-1979; 1979-1980]
- Box 40 [Department Annual Reports: 1980-1981; 1981-1982; 1982-1983]
- Box 40 [Department Annual Reports: 1986-1987; 1987-1988]

Box 40	[Department Annual Reports: 1989-1990; 1990-1991; 1991-1992; 1993-1994]
Box 40	[Department Chairman Evaluation. November 1977.]
	[Department Chairman Search. 1974-1975]
	Department Files Notes: This group is arranged by academic year. Department Meeting Agendas, Minutes, and other miscellaneous information are included in these folders.
Box 40	[Untitled], [1971-1972]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1972-1973]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1973-1974]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1974-1975]
Box 40	[Untitled], 1978-1979]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1979-1980]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1980-1981]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1981-1982]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1982-1983]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1983-1984]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1984-1985]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1985-1986]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1986-1987]
Box 40	[Untitled], [1987-1988]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1988-1989]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1989-1990]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1990-1991]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1991-1992]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1992-1993]

Box 41	[Untitled], [1993-1994]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1994-1995]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1995-1996] [Diskette has been removed for preservation purposes]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1996-1997]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1997-1998]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1998-1999]
Box 41	[Untitled], [1999-2000]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1986-1987.]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1992-1993]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1993-1994]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1995-1996]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1996-1997]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1997-1998]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. 1998-1999]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. Contract between Richland County Coroner's Office and USC Department of Anthropology. Fall Semester 1995.]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. PhD in Anthropology Proposal. 1986.]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. Public Service Archaeology Master's Program (PSAMP). 1987-1988]
Box 41	[Graduate Program. Public Service Archaeology Master's Program (PSAMP). Working Papers for the Management of PSAMP. 1988]
Box 41	[Physical Anthropology Position. December 1979]
Box 41	[Physical Anthropology Position. 1986-1987]
Box 41	[Rathbun, Department Chairman. 1987-1989]
Box 42	[Rathbun, Department Chairman - Correspondence with Dean Carol McGinnis Kay. 1987-1988.]

Day 42 [Bethbur, Department Chairman, Department Diagning, March 1007	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Department Planning. March 1987- September 1987.]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Evaluations of Rathbun. 1988]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Faculty Evaluations (1987-1988) and Requests for 1988-1989 Salary Increases. 1988.]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Faculty Meetings. 1987-1988.]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Faculty "Monday Memos". August 1988 - February 1989.]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Office Staff - Planning. 1987.]	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Salary and Space Meeting with Provost	
Borkowski, Dean Kay, and V.P. Rinker. December 16, 1987.]	
Borkowski, Dean Kay, and V.P. Rinker. December 16, 1987.]Box 42[Rathbun, Department Chairman - Salary Discussion. April-May 1989.]	
· · ·	
Box 42 [Rathbun, Department Chairman - Salary Discussion. April-May 1989.]	
Box 42[Rathbun, Department Chairman - Salary Discussion. April-May 1989.]Box 42[Rathbun, Department Chairman - Staff Meetings. 1987.]Box 42[Rathbun, Deputy State Archaeologist for Forensics and Physical	7]

### 9.3: Personal Records, 1965-2004

Scope and This subseries contains the various academic and professional activities (other than teaching) associated with being a professor. Included in this subseries is correspondence from colleagues, students, and the public, and clippings from newspapers and periodicals, primarily noting his assistance to law enforcement agencies in identifying victims. Also included are his USC personnel records, his yearly faculty reports, and his daily calendars.

	Calendars/No Notes:	tes Desk calendars, notes, telephone messages are included in these folders. This group is arranged by academic year (Summer Session Spring Session.)
Box 43	[Untitled],	[1973 - 1979]
Box 43	[Untitled],	[1979 - 1980]

Box 43	[Untitled], [1980 - 1981]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1981 – 1982]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1982 – 1983]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1983 – 1984]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1984 – 1985]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1985 – 1986]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1986 – 1987]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1987 – 1988]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1988 – 1989]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1989 – 1990]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1990 – 1991]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1991 – 1992]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1992 – 1993]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1993 – 1994]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1994 – 1995]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1995 – 1996]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1996 – 1997]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1997 – 1998]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1998 – 1999]
Box 43	[Untitled], [1999 – 2000]
Box 43	[Untitled], [2001]
Box 43	[Certificates and Awards, 1965-2003]
Box 43	[Correspondence]
Box 43	[Academic Advising, Career Day. 1976-1995]

Box 43	[Baylor University. 1990]
Box 43	[Committees for Reviews of Students (e.g., Dissertations, Scholarships, Fellowships)]
Box 43	[Inquiry Letters, Colleagues]
Box 43	[Inquiry Letters, Media]
Box 43	[Inquiry Letters, Public]
Box 43	[Inquiry Letters, Students]
Box 43	[Letters from Students]
Box 43	[Recommendation Letters, Colleagues]
Box 43	[Recommendation Letters, Students]
Box 43	[Southwest Texas University. 1981.]
Box 43	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Civic/Public Organizations]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Government Agencies]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Other USC Departments]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Other Universities]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Professional Organizations]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, Secondary Schools]
Box 44	[Speaking Engagements and Lectures, USC - Elderhostel]
Box 44	[USC Congratulatory Letters, Professional (Non-USC) Activities]
Box 44	[USC Congratulatory Letters, Student Activities]
Box 44	[USC Congratulatory Letters for USC Employment, Promotions, and Retirement]
	[USC Speakers' Lists and Media Contacts]
Box 44	[Curriculum Vitae 1994-1995]
Box 44	[Curriculum Vitae 2004]

Box 44	[Dissertation Information Acknowledgement. Susanne Storm. 1976. German (not translated). 'Die Skelete vom Takht - I- Suleiman (Nord-West Iran)"]
Box 44	[Faculty Evaluations. Cross Tabulation. 1/29/1976.] [Oversize Box]
Box 44	[Faculty Evaluations. Cross Tabulation. 2/8/1977.] [Oversize Box]
Box 44	[Faculty Evaluations. Statistical Summary. Fall 1979 and Spring 1979] [Oversize Box]
Box 44	[Faculty Mentoring. 1999-2000]
Box 44	[Media Articles] [3 folders 1 folder is in the Oversize Box]
Box 44	[Media Articles. "The Bone Man." Chris Horn. 2000]
Box 44	[Media Articles. "USC Professor Has Many Skeletons in His Closet". 1994]
Box 44	[Media Coverage and Articles used on corkboard in Rathbun's office]
Box 44	[Media Coverage USC Publications]
	[Personnel]Notes:Faculty Report of Activities, Merit Evaluations, Salary.This group is arranged by academic/fiscal year. Some folders may not have Merit Evaluations or Faculty Report of Activities or Salary Information. Some folders also contain Rathbun's CV as part of the report.
Box 44	[Untitled], [1970 - 1971]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1971 – 1972]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1972 – 1973]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1973 - 1974]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1974 - 1975]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1975 – 1976]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1976 – 1977]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1977 – 1978]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1978 – 1979]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1979 - 1980]

Box 44	[Untitled], [1980 - 1981]
Box 44	[Untitled], [1981 – 1982]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1982 – 1983]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1983 – 1984]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1984 – 1985]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1985 – 1986]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1986 – 1987]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1987 – 1988]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1988 – 1989]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1989 – 1990]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1990 – 1991]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1991 – 1992]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1992 – 1993]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1993 – 1994]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1994 – 1995]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1995 – 1996]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1996 – 1997]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1997 – 1998]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1998 – 1999]
Box 45	[Untitled], [1999 – 2000]
Box 45	[Photographs]
Box 45	[Promotion to Associate Professor with Tenure. 1974-1976]
Box 45	[Promotion to Professor File. 1980. Documents]
Box 45	[Promotion to Professor File. 1980. Recommendation Letters.]

Box 45	[Promotion to Professor File. 1983. Documents.]
Box 45	[Promotion to Professor File. 1983. Recommendation Letters.]
Box 45	[Promotion to Professor File. 1984. University Approval]
Box 45	[Retirement Proposals. 1998.]
Box 45	[Sabbatical Leave. 1977 Fall Semester]
Box 45	[Sabbatical Leave. 1984 Fall Semester]
Box 45	[Sabbatical Leave. 1992 Spring Semester]
Box 45	[Sabbatical Leave. 1999 Spring Semester]
Box 45	[Louise Fry Scudder Professorship, 1995-1996]
Box 45	[USC Continuing Education. 1980]

# Series 10: Education, 1961–1970

### 1.25 Linear feet

Scope and Contents:	This series contains Rathbun's course notes as an undergraduate and graduate student at University of Kansas. The series is arranged by date the course was taken.
Box 46	KU ANTH 1. Human Origins, Fall 1961
Box 46	KU ANTH 1 and 51. Human Origin. Quizzes/Exams, 1963-1969
Box 46	KU ANTH 2 and 52. Man and Culture, Spring 1962
Box 46	KU ANTH 2 and 52. Man and Culture. Quizzes and Exams, 1964-1970
Box 46	KU SOC 50. Cultural Conformity, Spring 1962
Box 46	KU ANTH 101. Culture, Society, and the Individual., Fall 1962
Box 46	KU ANTH 130. North American Indians, Fall 1962
Box 46	KU ANTH 170. The Races of Man, Fall 1962
Box 46	KU ANTH 143. Ethnology of East Asia (?), Spring 1963
Box 46	KU ANTH 153. Study of Civilizations (?), Spring 1963
Box 46	KU SOC 140. Industrial Sociology, Spring 1963
Box 46	KU ANTH 115. Culture and Personality, Fall 1963
Box 47	KU ANTH 176. Physical Growth and Constitution, Fall 1963
Box 47	KU ANTH 106. Social Structure, Fall 1963
Box 47	KU ANTH 174. Physical Anthropology, Spring 1964
Box 47	KU ANTH 307. Advanced Physical Anthropology, Spring 1964
Box 47	KU ANTH 168. Primate Behavior, Fall 1964
Box 47	KU ANTH 102. Principles of Cultural Anthropology, Fall 1964
Box 47	KU ANTH 157. Old Word Prehistory, Fall 1964
Box 47	KU ANTH 102. Principles of Cultural Anthropology, Spring 1965
Box 48	KU ANTH 150. Introduction to Linguistic Science, Spring 1965

Box 48	KU ANTH 193. Medical Anthropology, Spring 1965
Box 48	KU ANTH 166. Human Evolution and Fossil Man, Spring 1965
Box 48	KU Graduate Evaluation Examination, Fall 1965
Box 48	KU ANTH 192. Applied Anthropology, Fall 1965
Box 48	KU ANTH ???. Political Anthropology, Spring 1966
Box 48	KU ANTH 381. Ethnographic Research Methods and Participant Observation, Fall 1968
Box 48	KU SOC 107. World Population Problems, Fall 1968
Box 48	KU ENG 104. Introduction to Folklore, Fall 1968
Box 48	KU HIST 101. History of the Ancient Near East, Fall 1968
Box 48	[KU ANTH ???. North American Archaeology, Spring 1969
Box 48	KU ANTH 112. Belief Systems, Spring 1969
Box 48	KU ANTH 204. Principles of Anthropology II, Spring 1969
Box 48	KU ANTH 314. Communication in Cultural Innovation and National Development, Spring 1969
Box 48	KU ANTH 292. Acculturation, Spring 1970
Box 48	KU Alumni, 1996
Box 48	KU Transcript

## Series 11: Slides, 1964-1990, undated

Scope and	This series contains an assortment of slides, many of which appear to have been used
Contents:	for presentations and course lectures. The slides are of skeletal material, forensic case
	files, excavations, forensic crews, a recovery training class, facial reconstruction, CILHI, and
	Rathbun's trip to Iran. Series 12. Electronic Records contains scans of many of the slides
	that were used for his PowerPoint presentations.

- Box 57 Individualization: Examples from Rathbun Case Files Kalmey
- Box 57 38CH920-Folley Island- Bellview PLNT- 38CH778
- Box 57 Skeletal Features
- Box 57 African Americans & Plantations
- Box 57 Individuals
- Box 57 Forensic Anthro Class Slides
- Box 57 Misc. Forensic Cases
- Box 57 Recovery Training Class
- Box 57 Facial Reconstruction/Superimposition
- Box 57 38CH77B Soldiers and Slaves: 19th cen Biohistory, 1990
- Box 57 CILHI, 1987
- Box 57 Hutson Crypt, 1984
- Box 57 RTV Skull Casting New Mexico/Arizona, 1982
- Box 57 Iran, 1964-1968

## Series 12: Electronic Records, 1996, undated

### 2 Items (1 DVD and 1 3.50" floppy)

#### Restrictions: Restricted

Scope and Contents: Rathbun's files were originally on a variety of CDs and 3.50" floppy disks. These were burned onto a DVD-R by his colleague Michael Trinkley when preparing Rathbun's papers for deposit at the NAA in 2013. The files include scans of slides in Series 11. Slides that were used for PowerPoint presentations, his PowerPoint files, and a spreadsheet of his cases. This series also contains a 3.50" floppy disk with a faculty report from 1996 and a CD (separated from Series 7. Professional Organizations, "Photos of Rathbun") with tif images of Rathbun.